
 

 

AGENDA 
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 
May 13, 2010, 10:30 am 
Wolcott Mill Metropark 

Camp Rotary Activities Building 
 

 
1. Chairman’s Statement 
 
2. Public Participation 

 
3. Minutes – April 8, 2010 (pg. 1) 

 
4. Financial Statements (pg. 2) 

a. 2009 Audited Financial Statements (attached separately) 
b. April 2010 
 

5. Vouchers – April 2010 
 

6. Purchases – April 2010 (pg. 46) 
 

7. Reports 
 

A. Kensington 
1. Bids – Water system improvements, Orchard Comfort Station (pg. 54) 
2. Contractor claim – Martindale Bathhouse Redevelopment (pg. 55) 
3. Bids – Administrative Office building exterior repairs (pg. 56) 

 
B. Huron Meadows 

1. DTE Solar Currents program contract (pg. 57) 
 

C. Hudson Mills 
1. Bids – Activity Center parking lot expansion (pg. 58) 

 
D. Administrative Office 

1. 2010 Insurance report (pg. 59) 
2. 2010 Update to revised 2009 five-year plan (attached separately) 
3. Michigan State Fairgrounds 60-day report (pg. 62) 
4. Proposal – Organizational Structure and Operational Improvement Report (pg. 103) 
5. Auditor appointment (pg. 116) 
6. Resolution – Sign replacement permit, Wayne County DPS (pg. 117) 
7. Retiree healthcare benefits (pg. 120) 
8. Donations (5) (pg. 121) 
9. Legislative report (pg. 122)



 

 

AGENDA 
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 
May 13, 2010, 10:30 am 
Wolcott Mill Metropark 

Camp Rotary Activities Building 
 

 
8. Closed Session to consider land acquisition 

 
9. Director’s comments 
 
10. Commissioners’ comments 

 
11. Motion to adjourn  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

### 



HURON-CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY 
INTER-OFFICE COMMUNICATION 

 
 

TO:    Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Greg Almas, Executive Secretary 
DATE: April 21, 2010 
RE:  Addition to April 8, 2010 Minutes 
 
Please note the addition of Commissioner Lester as voting yes on the motion shown 
below on page two of the April 8, 2010 Board of Commissioner proposed minutes. 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Marrocco, supported by Commissioner Marans 
that the award of ITB-10-018 Wheel Loader – Metro Beach be made to Michigan 
Tractor and Machinery for a Cat 924Hz in the amount of $132,444 based on 
reliability, trade-in value and past experience. 
 
Voting Yes: Commissioners Marans, Marrocco and Lester 
Voting No: Commissioners Evans and La Belle 
 
Motion failed. 

 
 
Respectfully, 

 
Greg J. Almas 
Executive Secretary  
 
 

Page 1 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
3



Page 2 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
4



Page 3 of 123



Page 4 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
4-1



Page 5 of 123



Page 6 of 123



Page 7 of 123



Page 8 of 123



Page 9 of 123



Page 10 of 123



Page 11 of 123



Page 12 of 123



Page 13 of 123



Page 14 of 123



Page 15 of 123



Page 16 of 123



Page 17 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
4-1



Page 18 of 123



Results of the Financial Audit 
December 31, 2009

Page 19 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
4-2



Presented by:

Mark Tschirhart, CPA
Principal

Michelle Moore, CPA
Manager

Page 20 of 123



Audit Responsibility

 Management’s responsibility
 Auditor’s responsibility

3
Page 21 of 123



Guide to Your Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report

Page 22 of 123



1. GFOA Certificate (Page 3)
- Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting for the year ended December 31, 2008

2. Letter of Transmittal (Page 4)
- Formal transmittal of the CAFR
- Profile of the Authority
- Information useful in assessing the Authority’s financial 
condition

3. Auditor’s Opinion on Financial Statements (Page 17)
- Unqualified, i.e. “Clean” opinion.

5
Page 23 of 123



4. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Page 19)
- Acts as a narrative overview to the financial statements.
- Includes analysis of key financial data presented in the 

financial statements.
- Management’s responsibility to prepare, auditors 

responsibility to review, but we do not express an opinion it.

5. Basic Financial Statements (Page 32)
- Includes Governmental-Wide financial statements, 

Governmental “Fund” financial statements,  Fiduciary Fund 
financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

6
Page 24 of 123



6. Required Supplementary Information (Page 61)
- Act 345 Pension Trust schedule of funding progress.
- Other Postemployment Benefit Trust schedule of funding 

progress.

7. Supplementary Information (Page 63)
- Includes statements of Pension and Other Employee  Benefit 

Trust Funds 

7
Page 25 of 123



8. Statistical Section (Page 65)
- Information is unaudited, however it is read to ensure that the 

section does not contain information that is inconsistent with the 
audited financial statements.

- Provides mostly trend data and nonfinancial information useful 
in assessing the government’s financial condition.

8
Page 26 of 123



9. Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
in Accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards (Page 
87)
- Our responsibility is to consider the Authority’s internal 

controls and compliance over financial reporting for the 
purposes of planning our audit procedures in expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements and not to express an 
opinion directly related to the Authority’s compliance or 
internal controls

9
Page 27 of 123



Basic Financial Statements

Page 28 of 123



Basic Financial Statements

1. Governmental-Wide Financial Statements (Page 32)
- The scope is at an “entity-wide” level.
- The focus is based on an economic or “full accrual” basis of accounting 

(includes all entity capital assets, all entity outstanding debt, and revenues 
are recognized only on the basis of when earned).

- Fiduciary funds are NOT included.
- Unrestricted net assets or net deficits should not be interpreted, of itself, as 

either available spendable resources or evidence of financial difficulties. 
Rather it conveys information as an entity as whole, the long-term effect of 
short-term financing decisions, and the costs of providing the governments 
core services.

- Total net assets were $224,439,368 of which $29,396,377 was unrestricted.

11
Page 29 of 123



• Total Net Assets increased by approximately $6,630,000
• Unrestricted Net Assets decreased by approximately $130,000

12

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Capital 166,341,053 175,741,636 184,254,738 188,282,018 195,042,991 
Unrestricted 28,597,999 27,468,449 26,946,374 29,526,477 29,396,377 

-

50,000,000 

100,000,000 

150,000,000 

200,000,000 

250,000,000 

Net Assets

Page 30 of 123



Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

1. Governmental “Fund” Financial Statements (Page 32)
- Focus is on available “Spendable” resources, or modified accrual basis 

of accounting.
- Total fund balance for all governmental funds amounted to 

$33,874,904 at December 31, 2009 which represents a decrease in 
fund balance of approximately $38,000.

- Unreserved fund balance for all governmental funds amounted to 
$31,340,361 at December 31, 2009 of which $9,821,403 is 
undesignated.

13
Page 31 of 123



• Expenditures exceeded revenues by approximately $315,000

14

-

10,000,000 

20,000,000 

30,000,000 

40,000,000 

50,000,000 

60,000,000 

HURON-CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY GENERAL FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Revenues Expenditures

Page 32 of 123



• Unreserved fund balance represents approximately 46.91% of annual expenditures.
• Unreserved, undesignated fund balance was $9,821,403 and represented 18.45% of 

all annual expenditures.

15

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Upper 7,022,533 7,163,940 7,476,102 7,700,347 7,492,754 7,985,247 
Lower 2,340,844 2,387,980 2,492,034 2,566,782 2,497,585 2,661,749 
Total Unreserved 20,331,494 21,569,922 17,088,644 21,249,235 23,793,951 24,970,045

-
5,000,000 

10,000,000 
15,000,000 
20,000,000 
25,000,000 
30,000,000 

Am
ou

nt

Year

HURON-CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY 
GENERAL FUND UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE

Page 33 of 123



Recommended Fund Equity
 GFOA recommends each government adopt a 

policy requiring a minimum unreserved fund 
balance of 5-15%

 Each entity’s policy should take into account:
 Predictability of revenues
 Volatility of expenditures
 Long-term stability

16
Page 34 of 123



17

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Designated for capital 

appropriations 18,745,476 14,662,268 16,940,032 16,704,138 15,148,642 

Undesignated 2,824,446 2,426,376 4,309,203 7,089,813 9,821,403 

-

5,000,000 

10,000,000 

15,000,000 

20,000,000 

25,000,000 

30,000,000 

HURON CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY
Detail of Designated and Undesignated

General Fund Unreserved Fund  Balance 

Page 35 of 123



Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Governmental “Fund” Financial Statements (Page 32)

- GASB 45 - Accounting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions was applicable to the Authority for the year ended 
December 31, 2008.

- Other postemployment benefit obligation for the current year ended 
December 31, 2009 was $220,657.

- GASB 45 requires that the Authority obtain an actuarial valuation 
every two years.  As the most resent valuation was obtained for the 
plan year beginning October 1, 2009, Authority must obtain a 
valuation for the plan year beginning October 1, 2011.

18
Page 36 of 123



Basic Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Fiduciary “Fund” Financial Statements (Page 37)
- Presents statement of net assets for the Authority’s employee 

pension and other postemployment benefit trust funds.  These are used 
to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
Authority.

- Net assets of the trust funds amounted to $42,166,564 at
September 30, 2009.

4. Notes to the Financial Statements (Page 39)
- Section I – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
- Section II – Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability
- Section III – Detailed Notes on All Funds
- Section IV – Other information.

19
Page 37 of 123



Audit Findins

• No audit findings noted for the current year

20
Page 38 of 123



 Thank you to the management for their 
preparation and assistance.

 Thank you to the Commission for the 
opportunity to serve as your auditors.

Page 39 of 123



Questions and Answers…

Page 40 of 123



 5750 New King St., Suite 200 
Troy, MI  48098 
Ph: 248.952.5000 
Fx: 248.952.5750 
www.rehmann.com 
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

April 28, 2010 
 
 
Board of Commissioners 
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority 
Brighton, Michigan 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority (the 
“Authority”) for the year ended December 31, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated 
April 28, 2010.  Professional standards require that we provide you with the following 
information related to our audit. 
 
Our Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of 
America and Government Auditing Standards 
 
As stated in our engagement letter dated February 22, 2010, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by 
management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our audit of the 
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.   
 
As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Authority.  Such considerations 
were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance 
concerning such internal control.  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of the Authority’s compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. However, the objective of our tests was not to provide 
an opinion on compliance with such provisions. 
 
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 
 
We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to 
you in our engagement letter and our meeting about planning matters on October 22, 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
4-3



Page 2 
 
Significant Audit Findings  
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  In 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application.  The significant accounting policies 
used by the Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year.  
We noted no transactions entered into by the Authority during the year for which there is a lack 
of authoritative guidance or consensus.  There are no significant transactions that have been 
recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates 
affecting the financial statements were: 

 
� Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on 

the length of time it is believed that those assets will provide some economic benefit 
in the future. 

 
� Management’s estimate of the accrued compensated absences is based on current 

hourly rates and policies regarding payment of sick and vacation benefits.   
 

� Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible taxes is based on analysis 
of the outstanding receivables as well as consideration of past collection history.   

 
� Management’s estimate of the net other postemployment benefit obligation is based 

on the actuarial valuation, current benefits paid, and plan contributions.   
 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining 
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 

Page 42 of 123



Page 3 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 
of management. The only misstatement noted was a reclassification entry made to capital assets, 
which management corrected.   
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations  
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the attached 
management representation letter dated April 28, 2010. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or 
a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the governing body and management of the 
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

Very truly yours, 

 

Page 43 of 123



Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority 
 

Comments and Recommendations 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009 
 

 
 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Huron Clinton Metropolitan 
Authority (the "Authority") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the 
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies 
or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been 
identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Capital Assets 
 
During our testing of capital assets it was noted that the supporting detail did not agree with the 
general ledger for land improvements and other capital improvements which resulted in a transfer 
between categories.  We recommend that the Authority review the supporting detail to ensure that 
subcategory changes are properly recorded to the general ledger.  
 

Page 44 of 123



Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority 
 

Comments and Recommendations 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009 
 

 
 
Information Technology 
 
During our review of internal controls related to information technology, we noted the following: 
 
It was noted that there are no policies in place to ensure that users are added to or deleted from the 
network.  In addition, we noted that management does not approve the granting or changing of 
access for users of the network.  We recommend that management, in collaboration with the human 
resources department, establish procedures to ensure that network access changes are properly 
approved by management and users are added to or removed from the network on a timely basis.  
We feel that the implementation of this procedure will be very cost effective. 
 
It was noted that network passwords and passwords to financial applications are not required to be 
complex in nature and are not changed at regular intervals.  Even with a small group of users, 
passwords to applications should be changed periodically.  We recommend that these should be 
changed at least every 180 days.  We recommend that a policy be established to ensure that 
passwords use multiple characters, such as upper case, lower case, numbers and symbols. 
 
 

*  *  *  *  * 

Page 45 of 123



 

TABULATION OF BIDS 
ITB-10-018  

 
Wheel Loader, Metro Beach Metropark 
 
Bids opened at 10:00 A.M., Friday, March 12, 2010   
 
Scope of Work:  Furnish, deliver, training and provide a s even year preventative m aintenance and 
extended s even year c omprehensive w arranty of  a t wo yard w heel l oader w ith ac cessories f or t he 
Metro B each g rounds m aintenance depar tment. This loader will be us ed f or l oading m aterials, 
removing debr is, pl owing snow and ot her m aintenance t asks. I t replaces a 1996 John Deere model 
444G loader with approximately 5000 hours. 
  
Bidders         City, State Make/Model Amount 
AIS Construction Equipment Corp. Lansing, MI Komatsu WA200-6 $130,600.00 
AIS Construction Equipment Corp. Lansing, MI Komatsu WA200-5 $86,950.00* 
Southeastern Equipment Company Novi, MI Case 521E $123,512.28** 
AIS Construction Equipment Corp. Lansing, MI JCB416HT $127,300.00*** 
AIS Construction Equipment Corp. Lansing, MI Komatsu WA150-6 $127,600.00*** 
Grand Equipment Company Hudsonville, MI Kawasaki 60ZV-2 $128,889.00*** 
Carlton Equipment Company Inc. Livonia, MI Doosan DL200 $129,289.00**** 
JDE Equipment Company  New Hudson, MI John Deere 444K $132,305.00***** 
Michigan Tractor & Machinery Novi, MI Cat 924Hz $132,944.00 
Grand Equipment Company Hudsonville, MI Kawasaki 65ZV-2 $136,044.00 
JDE Equipment Company  New Hudson, MI John Deere 444K $137,280.00 

 
RECOMMENDATION:     Prepared by Purchasing Manager Michael and recommended by staff that:   
ITB-10-018 award be made to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder AIS Construction Equipment 
Corp in the amount of $130,600.00.      
 
Notes:   
All bids were based on the best value for life cycle cost, performance of equipment, meeting 
minimum specifications for construction and warranty. 

1) *The alternate bid by  A IS C onstruction is a used unit w ith appr oximately 2000 hour s and a 
limited 2 year power train warranty. 

2)  **The uni t bi d by  S outheastern E quipment C ompany di d not  m eet t he per formance t est at 
demo. 

3) ***The al ternate uni ts bid by A IS C onstruction and G rand E quipment C ompany are s maller 
loaders and does not meet specifications because of the engine size and overall construction. 

4) ****The uni t bi d by  C arlton E quipment C ompany di d not  meet specifications because of the 
length of warranty was 5 years instead of 7 years.  

5) *****The alternate bid by JDE Equipment Company has a different type of accessory attachment 
device that specified. 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS WERE POSTED ON MICHIGAN INTER GOVERMENTAL WEBSITE AND 
WERE SENT TO 97 REGISTERED SUPPLIERS. 
 

Page 46 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
6-1



 

Notes: Per the HCMA Board of Commissioners request, all bidders were asked to respond to a Request 
for Information on the trade values of the models bid as stated below. A seven-year trade value was 
requested based on most widely used ages published in trade publications. Bidders based their values 
from the Michigan Machinery Trader high/low average sale values.  Based on the average life 
expectancy of 15 – 20 years it is very difficult to get a firm trade value because of number of variables. 
Factors such as market conditions, number of hours, and age of machine affect the sale value.  
 
As shown in table number two below the best sale value for the Authority is at the 15-20 years and 
would provide an estimated 45-50 percent of this purchase price. This exceeds the seven-year trade 
value stated in table one. Based on this data and criteria it is recommended that award be made to the 
most responsive, responsible bidder as stated for the following reasons:  

1) No trade values were requested in the Invitation to Bid. 
2) Life cycle of HCMA type of equipment is 15- 20 years. 
3) Based on this life cycle it is difficult to project the trade/sale values. 
4) Sale of equipment after 15-20 years is a smaller differential of life cycle cost. 

 
 

Table 1 - Bidders Stated Trade Value after 7-years 
 

Bidders Make/Model Purchase Price Trade 7-years % 
Acq. 

AIS Construction Equipment Corp. Komatsu WA200-6 $130,600.00 $50,000.00 38% 
Southeastern Equipment Company Case 521E $123,512.28** $74,700.00 60% 
AIS Construction Equipment Corp. JCB416HT $127,300.00*** NA NA 
Grand Equipment Company Kawasaki 60ZV-2 $128,889.00*** $30,000 23% 
Carlton Equipment Company Inc. Doosan DL200 $129,289.00**** $38,128.00 30% 
JDE Equipment Company  John Deere 444K $137,280.00 NA NA 
Michigan Tractor & Machinery Cat 924Hz $132,944.00 $52,000.00 39% 
Grand Equipment Company Kawasaki 65ZV-2 $136,044.00 $35,000.00 26% 
* Refer to notes on page one of tabulation 
 
 
Table 2 - HCMA historical sales experience for similar equipment 
 

Mfg Acquired Disposed Life 
Span Acq. Price Sale Amount % Acq. 

John Deere 444E 1988 2006 19 $43,560.00 $32,000.00 73% 
Case 621F 1990 2005 16 $62,650.00 $24,858.00 41% 
John Deere 544E 1989 2005 17 $58,030.00 $26,888.00 46% 
Cat 924F 1999 2008 10 $95,056.00 $36,000.00 38% 
 
 
 

 

Page 47 of 123



 

 
 

AWARD OF BID PROCEDURE 
 

The following factors in combination, not necessarily listed in their order of importance, will be considered 
in reviewing bids and recommending the award of bids by the Board of Commissioners and/or Executive 
Director-Secretary as appropriate. 
 
All bidders should understand that only the Board of Commissioners can authorize a contract or award a 
bid involving an amount of $10,000 or more.  Such approval can only occur at a public meeting by Board 
of Commissioners.  Until a bid is awarded, the Board of Commissioners retains the right to reject any or all 
bids at its discretion.  Critical factors include: 
 

• Price 
 

• Bidder's previous record of performance and service 
 

• Ability of bidder to render satisfactory service 
 

• Availability of bidder's representative to call upon and c onsult with Huron-Clinton Metroparks user 
departments 

 
• Quality and conformance to specifications 

 
• Bidder's qualifications 

 
• Dun & Bradstreet information 

 
• Written recommendation from user department for the bid award 

 
 
In case of disagreement, the Purchasing Manager shall make the final recommendation for the award of 
bid to the Board of Commissioners. 

 

Page 48 of 123



 

TABULATION OF BIDS 
ITB-10-028 

 
 
Litter Vacuum, 2 Each 
Metro Beach Metropark 
 
Bids opened at 2:00 P.M., Monday, April 26, 2010   
 
Scope of Work: 
Furnish and deliver two (2) Litter Vacuums, 4-Wheel, Riding Type 
  
Bidders                            City                       Unit Price  Total         
 
Hollowell Products, Inc.     Wyandotte, MI       $26,337.06    $52,674.12 
 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Prepared by Food Service Administrator Janice Schlitters and 
recommended by staff that:  ITB-10-028 be awarded to the responsible, responsive 
bidder Hollowell Products, Inc. in the amount of $52,674.12. 
 
 
The Following companies reviewed the bid document but submitted a response of no bid:  
 
AIS Construction Corp.        Lansing, MI 
R & R Products, Inc.       Tucson, AZ  
Sears, Roebuck and Co.     Hoffman Estates, IL 
Spartan Distributors, Inc.     Sparta, MI 
Munn Tractor Sales, Inc.     Auburn Hills, MI  
 
 
 
INVITATION F OR BI DS W ERE PO STED O N MICHIGAN INTER GOVERMENTAL 
WEBSITE AND WERE SENT TO 91 REGISTERED SUPPLIERS.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
6-2



                                                                                                                                                  
TABULATION OF BIDS 

ITB 10-027 
 
 
Picnic Shelter 
Lower Huron Metropark 
Wayne County, Michigan 
 
 
Bids opened at 2:00 PM., Tuesday, April 27, 2010 
 
 
Scope of Work:  Furnish, Deliver, and unload materials to construct a 30’ x 60’ wood 
picnic shelter in accordance with the drawings provide in the bid.   
 
 
Vendor                                      City                        Amount 
 
Play Environments, Inc.  Holland  $18,000.00 
M.C. Gutherie Lumber  Livonia  $18,198.80 
Sinclair Recreation*   Holland  $19,386.00 
Ross & Barr Inc   Warren  $24,380.00 
Superior Play L.L.C.   Brighton  $24,731.25 
   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Prepared by Buyer Maria van Rooijen and recommended by 
staff  that: ITB-10-027 be awarded to the low responsive, responsible bidder, Play 
Environments, Inc. in the amount of $18,000.00. 
 
Note: Sinclair Recreation pricing does not include unloading of the materials.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
6-3



                              

                                                                                                                                               
TABULATION OF BIDS 

ITB-10-030 
 
 

Aquatic Chemicals 
Kensington, Stony Creek and Willow Metroparks 
 
 
Bids opened at 2:00 P.M., Monday May 3, 2009 
 
 
Scope of Work:   
Furnish and deliver Aquatic Chemicals to the various Metroparks as needed. 
 
 
Bidder  City, State Maximum Amount 

 
1) Cygnet Enterprises, Inc.  Flint, Mi. $212,576.80 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Made by Buyer Ron Smith and staff.  That ITB-10-030 be   
awarded to the low responsive, responsible bidder, Cygnet Enterprises, Inc. on a unit 
price basis, maximum amount of $212,576.80. 
 
 
Notes: 
1. Cygnet Enterprises, Inc. is a master wholesale distributor. 
2. The quantities are estimates only and are for the maximum allowable treatment 

area. The Authority is estimating purchasing approximately 25 percent of the total for 
the season.  

3. Prior year expenditures are as follows: 2009 - $48,000.00; 2008 - $42,000.00;  
2007 - $32,000.00; 2006 - $53,000.00; 2005 - $32,000.00; 2004 - $34,000.00;  
2003 - $67,000.00. 

  
 
 
 
INVITATION FOR BIDS WERE POSTED ON MICHIGAN INTER GOVERMENTAL 
WEBSITE AND WERE SENT TO 23 REGISTERED SUPPLIERS VIA EMAIL.   
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

Page 51 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
6-4



 

REQUEST FOR 
APPROVAL 

 
 

Base Station Repeater Installation 
Kensington Metropark 
Oakland County, Michigan 
 
Scope of Work: 
Furnish all labor and materials to replace the Kensington Metropark two way radio 
repeater/base station and antenna at the main service area. Installation of equipment 
will require set up, programming and testing of system. Motorola components are as per 
State of Michigan Contract No. 071B200262. 
  

  
  Contractor    City/State   Amount  

  
Herkimer Radio   Monroe, Michigan    $10,589.04 

                                                  
  

  
  

RECOMMENDATION:  Made by Purchasing Manager Michael and staff.  That a 
purchase order be issued to Herkimer Radio for Motorola radio equipment per State of 
Michigan Motorola Contract and antenna and installation on a time and materials basis 
in the amount of $10,589.04.  

     
Note: 
Herkimer Radio is an authorized Motorola dealer and has done excellent installation 
and troubleshooting work in the past. This installation requires the components to be 
matched and tested to perform to the best performance and provide the best longevity. 
This system replaces a base station that is failing and is being updated band width to 
meet FCC requirements.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
6-5



 

TABULATION OF BIDS 
ITB-10-027  

 
 
Paddleboats, Rental Quality 
Stony Creek and Kensington Metroparks 
 
 
Bids opened at 2:00 P.M., Monday, April 5, 2010   
 
 
Scope of Work: 
Furnish and deliver six (6) Paddleboats, complete with State of Michigan registration 
  

Bidders City Unit Price Total 
DMM Industries, Inc. Owosso, MI 1,871.29 11,227.74 
Outdoor Fun Store Co. Canton, MI 2,214.00   13,284.00 
Madalyn’s Contracting, LLC Berkley, MI 2,640.00  15,840.00 

 
                                                                 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Prepared by Food Service Administrator Janice Schlitters and 
recommended by staff that: ITB-10-027 be awarded to the low responsive, responsible bidder 
DMM Industries, Inc. in the amount of $11,227.74. 
 
 
 
INVITATION FOR BIDS WERE POSTED ON MICHIGAN INTER GOVERMENTAL WEBSITE 
AND WERE SENT TO 24 REGISTERED SUPPLIERS.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
6-6



                                                                                                                                                  
 

TABULATION OF BIDS 
PROJECT NO. 704-10E 

 
Orchard Picnic Area Well Improvement 
Kensington Metropark 
Oakland County, Michigan 
Major Maintenance Project 
 
Bids opened at 2:00 P.M., Thursday, April 29, 2010 
 
Scope of Work:  Project w ill i nclude t he r evision of  t wo pot able water supply wells, 
construction of a 70 square foot addition to the ex isting comfort s tation to house new 
pressure tank, plumbing and filter systems, miscellaneous underground work to existing 
water supply l ines, and related work.  E xisting water wells i nclude below-grade water 
storage tanks and are thus non-compliant with Health Department regulations; existing 
Comfort Station has inadequate space to house aboveground tanks.  P roject provides 
aboveground t anks, al ong w ith m odifications of the Comfort S tation and its pl umbing 
systems as needed to bring the system into compliance. 
 

Contractor                                         City                                Amount 
1. Ed Birkmeier Well Drilling   New Lothrop   $49,859.00 
2. Usztan, LLC     Auburn Hills   $51,950.00 
3. J. T. Maurer Building Co.   Plymouth   $78,800.00 
4. B. Sarkett Construction Co.  Woodhaven   $81,229.90  

             
          Total Budget Amount for Contract Services and Administration        $44,000.00   
        
          Proposed Work Order Amount 
  Contract Amount - Ed Berkmeier Well Drilling (Rounded) $50,000.00 
  Contract Administration      $  2,000.00    
   Total Proposed Work Order Amount   $52,000.00  
 
Note:  If a contract is awarded, no additional appropriation will be necessary.  Sufficient 
funds ex ist i n t he K ensington M ajor M aintenance A ccount t o c over t he di fference 
between low bid and Budget Amount. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Prepared by Chief Engineer Arens and recommended by staff   
that: Contract No. 704-10E be awarded to the lowest responsible, responsive bidder,  
Ed Birkmeier Well Drilling, in the amount of $49,859.00.   
 
The following contractors obtained bidding documents but did not submit a proposal: 
 
B&T General Contracting, Union Lake  Envision Builders, Inc., Wixom 
TDS Contractors, Inc., Waterford   Oak Construction Corp., Flint 
 
 

Page 54 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7A 1



CONTRACTOR CLAIM 
 
Martindale Bathhouse Redevelopment 
Project No. 504-08R 
Kensington Metropark 
Oakland County, Michigan 
 
At the meeting of the Board of Commissioners on March 11, 2010, Staff reported on the status 
of a contractor claim on the Martindale Bathhouse Redevelopment project.  As reported at that 
time, a c ontract for t his project was awarded t o the B raun Construction Group o f Farmington 
Hills on December 11, 2008 in the amount of $2,626,000.  At this time the project is 
approximately 95 percent complete, and it is scheduled to be completed before the summer use 
season begins. 
 
Total Change Orders to date on t his project are $94,010.37.   T hese Change Orders bring the 
total current contract amount to $2,719,010.37, a 3.6 percent increase over the original contract 
amount. 
 
As r eported on M arch 11,  2010,  the pr esent claim i s bas ed on t he c ontractor’s v iew t hat 
extensive groundwater conditions encountered during excavation constitute an unf oreseen site 
condition.  The contractor had originally submitted a claim (dated February 11, 2010) in the total 
amount of $175,923.36.   Staff had reviewed this claim and concluded that based on information 
submitted, t he m ajority o f t he c laim was invalid.  T he r eason for t his c onclusion was that 
numerous soil bor ings were taken on the site, and  all i ndicate t he presence of groundwater 
ranging from 2 to 9 feet below g round, along w ith predominantly sandy/ gr avelly soils.  A lso, 
along with the soil boring report, the contract documents include many indications that difficulty 
with gr oundwater c onditions c an be  ex pected.  Therefore E ngineering Staff bel ieves t hat the 
groundwater conditions actually encountered were not unforeseen but are well-documented in 
the contract.   
 
Prior to the March 11, 2010 report, Staff had advised the contractor of its position and requested 
additional information.   Subsequently the contractor submitted a revised claim amount and 
additional background information.  Summary cost breakdown, and associated subcontractors 
claiming to have incurred additional costs, are as follows: 
 
 Description    Subcontractor/  Supplier  Amount 
 Fuel Consumption   Chapp & Bushey Oil Co.  $  14,467.01 
 Dewatering Pump Rental  Thompson Pump Co.   $  60,712.00 
 Excavation Work   Aielle Construction Co.  $  47,018.09 
 Miscellaneous Material  Merlo Construction   $       738.35 
 Total Revised Claim Amount       $122,935.54 
 
After negotiations, we have reached a tentative agreement on the claim with the contractor in 
the amount of $35,000.  The contractor tentatively agrees that he will execute a settlement 
agreement as part of the Change Order document, and that he will indemnify the Authority from 
any claims from subcontractors relating to the claim.  Staff coordinated with legal counsel, Mr. 
Lawrence Dudek of Miller, Canfield, Paddock & Stone on negotiations and settlement 
agreement details. 
 
Recommendation:  P repared by Chief Engineer Arens and m ade by Staff.  That the Board of 
Commissioners app rove t he t entative ag reement to pay  $35, 000 i n s ettlement o f t he 
contractor’s claim, and t hat Staff b e authorized to ex ecute a C hange O rder formalizing t he 
agreement. 
 
Note:  I f t he tentative ag reement i s appr oved, an appr opriation from Re serves will  b e 
necessary. 

Page 55 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7A 2



                                                                                                                                                  
 

TABULATION OF BIDS 
 

 
Administrative Office Building Exterior Repairs 
Kensington Metropark 
Livingston County, Michigan 
Major Maintenance Project 
 
 
Scope of Work:  Repair the Dryvit-finished portions of the Administrative Office 
(window areas, soffits and columns at various locations around the building); provide 
cleaning, re-finishing and caulking of Dryvit areas.  Existing Dryvit is deteriorated, flaked 
and in need of re-coating; some areas have failed and require repair or replacement.   
Project is over budget due to repair needs being more extensive than anticipated during 
preparation of the 2010 Budget. 
 

Contractor                                         City                                Amount 
1. VJM Design Build, Inc.   Waterford   $16,850.00 
2. Ginnard Quality Construction, Inc. Novi    $35,000.00 

             
          Total Budget Amount for Contract Services and Administration        $  7,000.00   
        
          Proposed Work Order Amount 
  Contract Amount -  VJM Design Build, Inc. (Rounded)  $17,000.00 
  Contract Administration      $  1,000.00    
   Total Proposed Work Order Amount   $18,000.00  
 
Note:  If a contract is awarded, an appropriation from Reserves in the amount of 
$11,000 will be made to cover the difference between low bid and Budget Amount. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Prepared by Chief Engineer Arens and recommended by staff  
that: a purchase order be issued to the lowest responsible, responsive bidder, VJM 
Design Build, Inc., in the amount of $16,850.00, and that an appropriation from 
Reserves in the amount of $11,000 be authorized.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7A 3



CONTRACT and OPERATING AGREEMENT 
 
DTE SolarCurrents Solar Power Program 
Golf Cart Storage Building Electrical System 
Huron Meadows Metropark 
Livingston County, Michigan 
 
At its meeting of February 11, 2010, the Board of Commissioners approved a c ontract 
to revise t he el ectrical s ystem at  t he H uron M eadows G olf C art S torage B uilding t o 
support the new f leet o f electric-powered golf carts, scheduled for del ivery next June.  
Included in this project is the installation of a roof-mounted 2.4 kilowatt photovoltaic (PV) 
solar power system.   
 
As reported last February, this PV installation is eligible for a $5,760 one-time, up-front 
rebate through DET’s SolarCurrents PV reimbursement program.  Additionally, a $0.11 
per k ilowatt hour c redit w ill be appl icable to our monthly e lectrical b ills f or t he facility, 
based on power generated by the PV system. 
 
In order to receive the rebate and credit, the Authority must enter into a “SolarCurrents 
Customer-Owned S olar P ilot Program C ontract”  ( SolarCurrents C ontract) an d an 
“Interconnection an d P arallel O perating A greement” ( Interconnection A greement) w ith 
DTE Energy.  The SolarCurrents Contract includes the following main provisions: 
 

- The Authority will sell and DTE will purchase Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) 
generated by the PV system 

- Agreement term is 20 years; Authority to remain a customer of DTE throughout 
term 

- Total up-front payment of $2.40 per kW installed t imes 2.4 kW = $5,760, along 
with $0.11 per kW generated 

- Authority to install system at its sole expense. 
- DTE to retain all interest in RECs generated during term of Contract 

 
The Interconnection Agreement includes the following main provisions: 
 

- The A uthority t o i nstall, m aintain, properly operate a nd p eriodically t est 
interconnection protective equipment 

- DTE re serves t he right to disconnect t he i nterconnected P V s ystem from t heir 
system under certain circumstances (e.g.  customer’s system fails, emergencies, 
maintenance, customer breach of contract) 

- Authority must make the site of the PV system accessible to DTE. 
 
Recommendation:  Prepared by Chief Engineer Arens and made by  S taff.  That t he 
Board of C ommissioners appr ove o f the SolarCurrents C ontract and I nterconnection 
Agreement, and that Staff be authorized to execute the documents.  
 

 

Page 57 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7B 1



TABULATION OF BIDS 
PROJECT NO. 508-10H 

 
Activity Center Parking Lot Expansion 
Hudson Mills Metropark 
Washtenaw County, Michigan 
Capital Improvement Project 
 
Bids opened at 2:00 P.M., Thursday, April 29, 2010 
 
Scope of Work:  Construct an appr oximately 1.1 acre aggregate-surfaced parking lot addition 
to the existing asphalt-surfaced lot at the Activity Center, to expand the existing 150-space lot 
by 147 spaces. Reconfigure lot entrance and turnarounds to accommodate the addition.  Project 
includes removal of selected pavement areas, grading, placement of aggregate material, partial 
pavement o f ent rance a nd t urnaround l anes, p arking bum pers, drainage i mprovements and 
related work.  Project is needed to accommodate regular overflow conditions (an average of 25 
times per y ear), wh ich create s ignificant er osion, r utting and parking control pr oblems i n t he 
existing turf overflow area.   
 

Contractor                                            City                                  Amount 
 

1. Summit Transport, Inc.   New Hudson   $170,338.50 
2. Cadillac Asphalt, LLC    Belleville   $191,380.00 
3. F. Allied Construction Co., Inc.  Clarkston   $196,616.50 
4. Bob Myers Excavating, Inc.   Brighton   $199,402.00 
5. T & M Asphalt Paving, Inc.   Milford    $202,995.00 
6. Quality Asphalt Paving, Inc.   Homer    $206,056.50 
7. ABC Paving company    Trenton   $218,108.97 
8. Nagle Paving     Novi    $218,482.00 
9. Fonson, Inc.     Brighton   $221,994.20 
10. Ajax Paving Industries, Inc.   Troy    $228,471.00 
11. Joe Raica Excavating, Inc.   Fowlerville   $287,435.00 

 
          Total Budget Amount for Contract Services and Administration         $210,000.00   
        
          Proposed Work Order Amount 
  Contract Amount -  Summit Transport, Inc. (Rounded)  $171,000.00 
  Contract Administration plus Force Account Work   $    7,000.00    
   Total Proposed Work Order Amount    $178,000.00  
 
 Funds to be Returned to Reserve Account     $  32,000.00 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Prepared by Chief Engineer Arens and recommended by Staff that: 
Contract N o. 508-10H be awarded to t he l owest r esponsible, r esponsive bidder, Summit 
Transport, Inc., in the amount of $170,338.50. 
 
The following contractors obtained bidding documents but did not submit a proposal: 
 
Birkenstock Construction, LLC, Brighton Best Asphalt, Romulus 
Midwest Pavement, Milford   D&H Asphalt Co., Hamburg 
Pro-Line Asphalt, Washington Twp.  Al’s Asphalt Paving, Taylor 
Wagner Excavating, Brighton 
 

Page 58 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7C 1



Page 59 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 1



Page 60 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 2



Page 61 of 123



Page 1 of 41 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Board of Commissioners 
FROM:  Jayne Miller, Director 
DATE:  May 13, 2010 
RE:  Michigan State Fairgrounds 60-Day Report 
 
 
At a S pecial M eeting of  t he B oard of  C ommissioners on F ebruary 24, 20 10, t he B oard p assed t he 
following motion  “…that a collaboration of staff and members of the Board of Commissioners meet with 
the State of Michigan to work out details, and in the process gather as many facts as possible within a 60-
day period, of a long-term lease for the possible development of the State Fairgrounds as a Metropark 
and possible continuation of the State Fair and that the city of Detroit be invited to the table”.   
 
Since t he passage of  t his motion, s taff has  been working w ith t he Michigan State F airgrounds ( MSF) 
Committee of the Board and State of Michigan to gather facts and details for the possible establishment 
of a Metropark at the State Fairgrounds site.  In addition, members of the MSF Committee and staff have 
met with the Mayor of Detroit and his staff on this project. During this 60-day period staff has:  
 

a. obtained the finances of the State Fair and Fairgrounds; 
b. completed a facility condition assessment of the property assets;  
c. prepared an RFP for Environmental Assessment work;  
d. drafted a scope of services to complete an assessment of the underground utilities; 
e. prepared draft site use concept plans; and  
f. identified ad ditional work t o be c ompleted in t he e vent a Me tropark w ere to b e c reated at  t he 

State Fairgrounds 
   
Below are summaries of this work, including associated attachments.   
 
Summary of State Fair & Fairgrounds Revenues & Expenses for Fiscal Years 2007 - 2009 
 

• Michigan Exposition and Fairgrounds Authority (MEFA) Board of Directors, working through the 
MEFA General Manager, was responsible for: 

1. Conducting annual State Fair; 
2. Leasing the State exposition and fairgrounds and its buildings for purposes considered to 

be consistent with staging of the State Fair; 
3. Entering into contracts to conduct the State Fair, exhibits and other events at the State 

exposition and fairgrounds. 
 

• MEFA General Manager responsible to present to MEFA Board of Directors: 
1. Annual Financial Plan – Budget; 
2. Five Year Operations Plan,  updated annually; 
3. Facility/utility c onstruction plan t o i nclude a m aster pl an f or us e of an y b uildings an d 

fairgrounds (as requested). 
 

• Act 46 8, P.A. of 2004  c reated M EFA to provide f or c ontrol a nd m anagement of  S tate ex po 
centers an d f airgrounds.  This s tatute t ransferred m anagement of  S tate F air properties f rom 
Department of Agriculture to MEFA effective 3/1/2005.  MEFA operated as a public body 
corporate under Department of Management and Budget. 

 
 

• Act 468, P.A. of 2004 permitted MEFA to incur expenses in this order of priority: 
1. Providing an annual State Fair; 
2. Maintaining the State exposition and fairgrounds; 
3. Accomplishing any other purpose authorized by the Act. 

 
• On F ebruary 12, 2 009, G overnor G ranholm i ssued Executive O rder t ransferring f unctions of 

MEFA to D.M.B. and abolished the MEFA effective October 1, 2009. 
 
 

Page 62 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 3

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text



Page 2 of 41 
 

• Capitalization Limits: 
1. Capital improvement assets over $100,000 
2. Equipment – $5,000 
3. Depreciation – straight line 
4. Estimated useful lives 

1. Equipment – 5 years 
2. Buildings and building renovations – 10 to 40 years 

 
• Capital assets as of 9/30/2009 

Land/land improvements    $  3,360,000 
Buildings/equipment/other depreciable assets $12,339,000 
 Less accumulated depreciation   $  8,408,000 
Net buildings/equipment/other depreciable assets $  3,931,000 

 
Buildings/equipment are 68 percent depreciated, which indicates they only have 32 percent of their 
estimated useful life remaining.   

 
• Insurance/risk management: 

1. MEFA participates in State of Michigan’s self insured risk management program. 
2. The State is self insured for: 

a. General liability 
b. Property/building losses 
c. Auto 
d. Worker’s Comp 
e. Unemployment claims 

3. The State charges MEFA for self insurance similar to purchasing commercial insurance 
based on claim experience. 

 
• Audit report noted internal control deficiencies: 

1. FY 2007: 
a. Improper recording of ac counts receivable write-offs, under stating expenses by 

$125,000. 
b. MEFA di d n ot ob tain s igned c ontracts a nd r equired i nsurance c ertificates f or al l 

vendor space rentals.  124 vendor space rentals – audit reviewed 25 and found 12 
percent without contracts – 16 percent without liability insurance – 16 percent without 
worker’s comp insurance. 

2. FY 2008: 
a. Inadequate control over gate admission, ticket inventory and ticket sales. 
b. Vendor space rentals – same as FY 2007. 

3. FY 2009:  None – MEFA abolished. 
 

• Budgets: 
1. MEFA revenue budgets missed revenue targets b y an average of  $1,752,000 over last 

three fiscal years (FY 2007 - $1,778,000; FY 2008 - $1,941,000; FY 2009 - $1,538,000). 
2. MEFA ex pense budgets for oper ations c ame in under  b udget b y an average of  

$1,247,000 over last three fiscal years (FY 2007 - $1,188,000; FY 2008 - $1,400,000; FY 
2009 - $1,152,000). 

 
Facility Condition Assessment 
 
On March 11, 2010 the Board of Commissioners retained the architectural firm of SmithGroup of Detroit 
to perform a Facility Condition Assessment of the Michigan State Fairground property.   
 
As with t he 20 03 as sessment, t he goal is t o i dentify m inimal r epairs a nd u pgrades n eeded t o br ing 
facilities up t o s afe, us able, c ode-compliant an d s uitable c ondition f or op eration.  N o improvements, 
upgrades or  alterations beyond t hat po int ar e i ncluded.   Also, t he Assessment i dentifies onl y t hose 
buildings, f acilities and i tems w hich ar e ab ove-ground, v isible and readily ac cessible, and i t does  not  
include un derground ut ilities or  env ironmental c onditions which m ust be as sessed s eparately.  T he 
present Assessment includes the following tasks: 
 

Page 63 of 123



Page 3 of 41 
 

- Review, re-assessment and re-estimating of facilities previously identified in the 2003 
assessment (excluding Administration, Community Arts and Band Shell Buildings, proposed for 
lease by Hantz Farms). 

- Identification of new items that have arisen/ worsened in the last 7 years. 
- Adding buildings to the scope of the original assessment:  Coliseum, Agriculture Building, and a 

number of livestock buildings. 
- Prepare a cost estimate for repair and upgrade projects. 
- Indicate r elative pr iorities of repair/ upgrade pr ojects, t o ac commodate pu blic use of  t he m ost 

critical facilities as soon as possible. 
- Provide a code compliance review, addressing egress, fire suppression, accessibility, etc. 
 

The SmithGroup completed their field investigation work in late March and early April of 2010, and they 
have submitted the Facility Condition Assessment.  They have prepared a detailed report of their findings, 
which will be made available to Board if so desired.  An executive summary of the report is attached to 
this report.   
 
The Facility Condition Assessment is divided into two parts:  1) those facilities which are located on the 
portion of pr operty proposed t o b e leased by HCMA ( the n ortherly120 ac res); an d 2)  t hose f acilities 
located on the portion proposed for lease by Hantz Farms (the southerly 40 acres).  Cost estimates for 
repairs and upgrades of facilities are grouped according to the proposed leased areas.   
 
The r eport indicates t hat t he t otal estimated cost to repair/ up grade f acilities o n t he pr oposed H CMA-
leased property is $20,947,155. 
 
Environmental Assessment RFP 
 
As a pot ential o wner or  oper ator ( lessee) of  t he S tate F airground pr operty, HCMA m ust under take a  
Phase 1 an d P hase 2 Environmental S ite Assessment ( ESA), a B aseline Environmental A ssessment 
(BEA), and ot her due c are ac tivities, i n or der t o pr eserve i ts i nnocent l andowner def enses aga inst 
potential e nvironmental liability c aused b y pr evious o wners und er P art 2 01 of  N atural R esources an d 
Environmental Protection Act.   
 
Potential environmental liabilities exist on the property.  The State of Michigan prepared its own Phase 1 
ESA i n 1999 an d P hase 1 and P hase 2 E SAs in and  2009.  The P hase 2 E SA i dentified ei ght (8) 
Recognized E nvironmental C onditions on  t he pr operty, including t wo ( 2) o pen l eaking Underground 
Storage T anks ( UST) sites, c ontamination i n ar eas of abov eground and underground s torage t anks, a 
former machine shop and a past fuel spill.  The property is defined as a “Facility” within the meaning of 
Part 201.  The State also conducted an Asbestos and Limited Lead-Based Paint Survey (Survey) in 2009. 
The Survey identified approximately 17 buildings having asbestos containing material (and an estimated 
cost of approximately $448,000 for remediation), and it recommended the assumption that all buildings 
were coated with lead-based paint.    
 
Accordingly, a Request for Proposals for environmental consulting services was prepared with the 
assistance of Ms. Anna Maiuri of Miller, Canfield, Paddock & Stone, HCMA’s environmental counsel.  The 
RFP was i ssued on an i nvitational bas is t o 12 qua lified f irms.  P roposals were r eceived f rom seven of 
those firms on May 3, 2010.   
 
As with the Facility Condition Assessment, the proposed ESA is divided into two parts as related to the 
property:  1) the portion of property proposed to be leased by HCMA (the northerly120 acres); and 2) the 
portion proposed for lease by Hantz Farms (the southerly 40 acres).  If the ESA is authorized to proceed 
by the Board, and assuming the Hantz Farms lease is to be executed, then HCMA would perform an ESA 
only on the northerly 120 acres of property. 
 
A pr operty des cription of  t he proposed H CMA-leased land w ould be nec essary bef ore the ESA 
commences ( as i t w ould b e nec essary in or der t o pr epare a l ease), i n or der t o ac curately define t he 
property boundaries.  It should also be noted that the BEA must be completed within 45 days of execution 
of lease in order to comply with the requirements of Part 201. 
 

Page 64 of 123



Page 4 of 41 
 

Attached is a t abulation of  responding f irms, their cost proposals and selected highlights.  I f the Board 
elects to proceed with the project, Staff will be prepared to recommend the acceptance of a proposal from 
one of the submitting firms as early as the June 10, 2010 meeting of the Board of Commissioners. 
 
Underground Infrastructure Condition Assessment 
 
As part of the fact-finding effort that the Board directed Staff to undertake, an assessment of underground 
infrastructure on the Michigan State Fairground property will be necessary, to address those assets not 
included in SmithGroup’s Facility Condition Assessment.  Very little is known about the extent, location, 
condition, a ge, r eliability, regulatory c ompliance, or  ex act o wnership of existing un derground 
infrastructure or utilities on the site.  An assessment would include the following tasks: 
 
Phase 1 – Documentation and Record Information 
 

- Collect maps and other documents from agencies having utilities affecting the site:  Detroit Water 
and Sewer D epartment, DTE E nergy, M ichcon, A T&T, C omcast and D etroit P ublic L ighting 
Department; c ollect record documents from the Michigan Department of Management and 
Budget. 

- Develop schematic utility plans. 
- Determine limits of utility agency ownership. 

 
Phase 2 – Infrastructure Condition Assessment 
 

- Assess t he c ondition of  water m ain and s ewer systems; c ollect i nstallation a nd m aintenance 
records; determine system age.  

- Prepare recommendations and cost estimates for repairs and upgrades. 
 
Phase 3 – Physical Inspection, Televising, Actuation (Optional) 
 

- Perform representative (or complete) cleaning and TV inspection of sanitary sewers; flow tests at 
fire hydrants. 

 
For purposes of defining a scope of services for an infrastructure condition assessment, and of obtaining 
a cost es timate f or those s ervices, Staff r equested a pr oposal f rom t he eng ineering f irm o f A nderson, 
Eckstein &  Westrick, I nc. ( AEW) of  S helby T ownship.  AEW w as c ontacted due  t o t heir extensive 
experience on an infrastructure assessment of the Gateway project, located at the southeast corner of 8 
Mile Road and Woodward Avenue and abutting the State Fairground property.   AEW’s proposal dated 
April 26, 2010 is attached.   
 
If t he B oard el ects t o pr oceed with an i nfrastructure condition as sessment, S taff i s pr epared t o 
recommend that AEW be retained to provide consultant services.  Alternatively, if the Board desires, Staff 
may issue a request for proposals to other engineering firms who are capable of providing these services.  
 
Draft Site Use Concept Plans 
 
Introduction 

Providing viable parks and recreation facilities is an important part of a city’s effort to remake itself as a 
vibrant and a ttractive p lace to live, work and play. In the early 1900s the city of Detroit embarked on a 
path t o de velop par ks and  r ecreation c enters t hroughout t he c ity. T oday D etroit’s p ark and r ecreation 
system has deteriorated due to the age of facilities and diminishing financial resources. Other cities have 
learned t hat pr oviding h igh q uality green s pace an d r ecreation am enities he lps r etain t he population, 
attracts ne w residents, an d enc ourages reinvestment i n ol der urban areas. Well c ared f or urban green 
space i s a m eans of  s howing ex isting a nd prospective r esidents an d b usiness o wners t hat t he c ity is 
optimistic about its future. 

The State of Michigan owns the Michigan State Fairgrounds located in the city of Detroit south of Eight 
Mile Road on Woodward Avenue. Due to budget problems, the State will no longer operate a State Fair. 
Over the course of several decades, the Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority (Metroparks) has explored 
sites for a Metropark within the Detroit city limits. The State Fairgrounds is a possible location and Staff 

Page 65 of 123



Page 5 of 41 
 

has prepared two conceptual park development plans. Concept 1 assumes that the park will remain the 
site of the annual Michigan State Fair; and Concept 2 assumes that this will not be the site of the State 
Fair. 

State Fairgrounds Metropark Concept 1: Assumptions 

- The proposed State Fair Metropark would encompass 120 acres of the 160 acre parcel of land.  
- Hantz Farm Detroit would manage a farming operation on the remaining forty acres.  
- The park will remain the site of an annual Michigan State Fair.  
- Metroparks will operate the park 11 months of the year. 
- A vendor will operate the fairgrounds during the month of August, when the Michigan State Fair is 

held.   
- By the nature of its location, a Metropark at the State Fairgrounds will be much different than the 

expansive green spaces and natural resources experienced at the 13 existing Metroparks.  
- Buildings necessary to conduct the State Fair will remain on the site.  
- Approximately thirty f ive a cres of  open  ar ea i s needed f or State F air am usement r ides an d 

parking.  
- The open 35 acres may consist of a combination of paved and unpaved surfaces. 
- The existing Pocket Park would remain.  
- Public s urvey d ata f rom a 2005 D etroit R ecreation Department S trategic P lan w ill be us ed t o 

determine the needs of potential park patrons. 
 

State Fairgrounds Metropark Concept 2: Assumptions 

- The proposed Metropark would encompass 120 acres of the 160 acre parcel of land.  
- Hantz Farm Detroit would manage a farming operation on the remaining forty acres.  
- The park will not be the site of the annual Michigan State Fair.  
- Metroparks will operate the park 12 months of the year. 
- By the nature of its location, a Metropark at the State Fairgrounds will be much different than the 

expansive green spaces and natural resources experienced at the 13 existing Metroparks.  
- Buildings the can be renovated for Metropark operations, maintenance, and security will remain.  
- The existing Pocket Park would remain.  
- Public s urvey d ata f rom a 2005 D etroit R ecreation Department S trategic P lan w ill be us ed t o 

determine the needs of potential park patrons. 
 

State Fairgrounds Metropark Concept Plan 

In 2005 the Detroit Recreation Department (DRD) completed a Strategic Master Plan which focused on 
all of the city-owned parks and recreation centers. Opinions expressed in the Plan’s public surveys have 
been r eferenced i n t he S tate F air Met ropark Mas ter P lan s tudy.  T he r esults and/or r ecommendations 
from the site assessment report by the SmithGroup for the renovation or removal of existing facilities will 
also be incorporated in the plan.  

In r esponse t o t he pu blic survey the M etropark s hould include bas ketball c ourts, pl aygrounds, picnic 
areas with s helters, r estrooms, and s afe, s ecure grounds. However, t he f inal p lan c ould i nclude tennis 
courts, soccer and football fields, trails, and water sprayground. Final needs will be determined through 
several public engagement meetings, if it is determined that the Master Plan concept be studied further.  

Additional Work To Be Completed 
 
Staff has identified the following issues that would need to be addressed if the Board decides to move 
forward with establishing the Fairgrounds as a Metropark. 
 

1. Complete Physical Assessment Work  
a. Complete the Underground Infrastructure Condition Assessment 
b. Complete a property description on the HCMA-leased portion of the State Fairgrounds 
c. Complete the environmental assessment and remediation due diligence 

 
 

Page 66 of 123



Page 6 of 41 
 

d. Based on  t he r esults of t he f acility c ondition as sessment, underground i nfrastructure 
condition assessment and environment assessment work, develop a strategy for re-use, 
re-development or demolish of property assets in concert with developing refined plans 
for the site 

 
2. Engage the City of Detroit in site development 

 
3. Develop refined plans for the site 

a. Implement a public engagement process to gather input about desired uses and activities 
on the site 

b. Refine plans, with cost estimates, for site based on public input and physical assessment 
results 

c. Share with public the refined plans and cost estimates to gather public feedback 
d. Complete finalized plans for the site 

 
4. Engage i nterested p arties i n di scussions f or par tnerships a nd f unding o pportunities, including 

grant funding  
a. Develop a strategy to formally establish partnerships and funding strategies to implement 

finalized plans for the site 
 

5. Develop business plan for implementing development, partnership, funding and operational plans 
for the site 
 

6. Begin negotiations with the State of Michigan regarding lease or sale of property to Metroparks 
 

 
Board Direction 
 
Staff is requesting direction from the Board on whether to continue work on this project for the creation of 
a Metropark at the State Fairgrounds site.   
 
Attachments: 

1. Michigan State Fairgrounds Summary Financial Information, 2007-2009 
2. Michigan State Fairgrounds Summary of Revenues and Expenses, 2007-2009 
3. Michigan State Fairgrounds – Fair Expense Detail, 2009 
4. Facility Condition Assessment 
5. Environmental Assessment Bid Tabulation Sheet 
6. Underground Infrastructure Condition Proposal 
7. Map of existing Fairground site 
8. Description of Features of Concept Plan 1 and 2  
9. Summary of results of the Detroit Recreation Department Public Survey 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 67 of 123



Page 7 of 41 
 

  

ATTACHMENT 1 

     Financial Information 
     Financial information w as obt ained from v arious c ontacts at  t he State of  M ichigan.  T he f unctions of  t he 

Michigan Exposition and Fairgrounds Authority Board of Directors and Staff was abolished effective   
October 1,  2009. T he D epartment of  Mana gement an d B udget inherited al l pr operty m anagement 
responsibility and various accounting records. 
 
The most salient financial information was obtained from a review of the Auditor General's Audit Reports for 
the 9/30 fiscal year ends as summarized below: 

   
FY 2007 

 
FY 2008 

 
FY 2009 

Revenues 
     

 
Fair revenues $3,995,000  

 
$3,387,000  

 
$2,955,000  

 
Non-fair revenues 751,000  

 
614,000  

 
468,000  

  
TOTAL REVENUES $4,746,000  

 
$4,001,000  

 
$3,423,000  

        Expenses 
     

 
Fair expenses - direct $2,816,000  

 
$2,431,000  

 
$2,724,000  

 
Fair and non-fair expenses 

     
  

- Administration 778,000  
 

1,022,000  
 

1,032,000  

  
- Buildings/Grounds Maintenance/Security 1,132,000  

 
1,028,000  

 
1,140,000  

 
Depreciation 330,000  

 
329,000  

 
329,000  

 
Road Paving Expense 0  

 
152,000  

 
0  

  
TOTAL EXPENSES $5,056,000  

 
$4,962,000  

 
$5,225,000  

 
NET OPERATING LOSS ($310,000) 

 
($961,000) 

 
($1,802,000) 

        Capital Assets as of 9/30/2009 
     

 
- Land and land improvements 

    
$3,360,000  

 
- Buildings/equipment/other depreciable assets 

 

$12,339,00
0  

  
  

Less accumulated depreciation 
  

(8,408,000) 
  

  
Net building/equipment/other depreciable assets 

   
$3,931,000  

 
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS 

    
$7,291,000  

        We were not able to obtain more specific breakouts of expenses between Fair and Non-Fair for: (1) 
Administration, (2) Buildings, (3) Grounds Maintenance, and (4) Security.  These are year-round expenses 
that were not distinguished between Fair and Non-Fair. 
 
Michigan State Police provided security support during the Fair.  Direct State Police wage costs, which 
averaged $63,000 per year from 2001 to 2007, were absorbed by the State Police budget.  State Police only 
charged the State Fair for overtime, housing, meals and mileage, which averaged $33,000 per year for 2007 
to 2009. 
 
Current year-round 24-7 security at the Fairgrounds is provided by C.S.S. Security under a contract which 
runs until October 2011 at a cost of $23,000 per month ($276,000 per year). 
The Michigan Department of Natural Resources operated the "Detroit Pocket Park" during the State Fair at 
an estimated cost of $150,000 for staff and operating supplies.  A summer outdoor skills clinic was provided 
for eight weeks from mid-June to mid-August at a cost of approximately $22,000. 
A more complete breakdown of Michigan State Fairgrounds revenues and expenses is enclosed as 
attachment 2 with general comments relating to FY 2009 only. 

Page 68 of 123



Page 8 of 41 
 

  
ATTACHMENT 2 

       
         

4/19/2010 
MICHIGAN STATE FAIRGROUNDS 

SUMMARY OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES* 
FISCAL YEARS 2007, 2008, 2009 

                    

          
   

FY 2007 
 

FY 2008 
 

FY 2009 
 

FY 2009 - COMMENTS 
Operating Revenues 

       
 

Fair Revenues 
       

  
Gate Admissions $1,223,000  

 
$1,158,000  

 
$1,089,000  

 
General admission fees at $9.00 - fairgrounds, entertainment acts. 

  
Parking 337,000  

 
247,000  

 
264,000  

 
Parking fees at $7.00. 

  
Midway 938,000   791,000   1,006,000  

 
North American Midway Entertainment Company in 2009 paid a flat 
$1.0 million fee.   Prior years - Wade Shows.  Contracts negotiated 
differently: ( 1) flat f ee, or  ( 2) 1s t $ 500,000 t o f air, 2n d $5 00,000 t o 
midway - over $1.0 million split on % basis.  Midway vendor required 
to s upply o wn ge nerators and t icket s ellers - no ad ded ex pense t o 
MEFA.  Separate admission collected by midway vendor ($15.00). 

  
      

 
  

      
 

  

      

 
  

Merchandise 30,000  
 

16,000  
 

29,000  
 

State Fair logo, etc. sold directly by State Fair employees. 

  
Concessions 14,000  

 
11,000  

 
6,000  

 
Minor - not investigated. 

  

Vendor Space Rentals 369,000   325,000   250,000  

 

Flat fees based on square footage of space utilized.  No % of sales - 
too m any administrative/control problems.  2009 dr opped - vendors 
not satisfied and fair ending. 

  
Entry Fees 157,000  

 
125,000  

 
108,000  

 

For showing of animals - horses, pigs, cattle, food contests, quilts, 
artworks, etc. 

  

Sponsorship 663,000   479,000   187,000  

 

Corporate/naming r ights s ponsorship f ees dec lined s ignificantly du e 
to (1) economy, (2) lack of promotion/contacts by State Fair GM, and 
(3) abolishment of State Fair.  Requires great salesman/promotional 
skills to be successful. 

  
Premiums 217,000  

 
203,000  

 
0  

 
Unknown. 

  
Miscellaneous 47,000  

 
32,000  

 
16,000  

 
Unknown. 

          
  

TOTAL Fair Revenues $3,995,000  
 

$3,387,000  
 

$2,955,000  
  

  

 
 
 
 

       

Page 69 of 123



Page 9 of 41 
 

 

Non-Fair Revenues 
       

  
Gate Admissions $29,000  

 
$37,000  

 
$30,000  

 
Gate admissions to State-run events/shows/etc. 

  
Parking 80,000  

 
80,000  

 
51,000  

 
Parking fees for State-run events/shows/etc. 

  
Merchandise 1,000  

 
1,000  

 
0  

  
  

Concessions 17,000  
 

13,000  
 

12,000  
 

Food concession sales for State-run events/shows/etc. 

  

Grounds Rental 269,000   6,000   8,000  

 

Vehicle s torage gr ounds r ental was discontinued i n FY2007 d ue to 
downturn in auto production - had be en c lose t o $1.0 m illion in 
FY2006.  Posen Construction current ground rental. 

  

Buildings Rentals 350,000   458,000   339,000  

 

Dumars Fieldhouse r ents A griculture B uilding/East Ma ll at 
$50,000/year - current lease ex tended t o 2 014 - Dumars has  s ole 
option t o extend t wo a dditional f ive-year t erms - otherwise, h eavy 
payout c lause. 
Other l eases h ave ex pired f or ( 1) i ndoor golf, ( 2) C oleman f ootball 
camp, ( 3) D etroit E questrian C enter, ( 4) E ight M ile Boulevard 
Association, (5) Little Caesar's - Hockeytown FY2008 and FY2009 - 
moved to Southfield Arena under two-year lease expiring 7/2011. 

  
Miscellaneous 5,000  

 
19,000  

 
28,000  

  
          
  

TOTAL Non-Fair Revenues $751,000  
 

$614,000  
 

$468,000  
  

          
 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $4,746,000  
 

$4,001,000  
 

$3,423,000  
  

         Operating Expenses 
       

  

Administration - Fair and Non-Fair $778,000   $1,022,000   $1,032,000  

 

Nine f ull t ime S tate em ployees' wages and f ringes $801,000; b ad 
debt expense $88,000; audit fees $38,000; info technology fees 
$34,000; of fice s upplies $18, 000; t elephone $1 3,000; hum an 
resource f ees $12, 000; t ravel ex penses $8, 000; copier $6, 000; 
postage $5,000; printing $4,000; other miscellaneous $5,000. 

          

  

Building/Grounds M aintenance/ 
Security - Fair and Non-Fair 

1,132,000   1,028,000   1,140,000  

 

Net utilities $453,000; wages and fringes $275,000; outside security 
services $127,000; bad debts $64,000; maintenance services 
$80,000; emergency repair services $45,000; workers compensation 
insurance $41,000; building repair services $18,000; operating 
supplies $22,000; travel expenses $5,000; other miscellaneous 
$10,000. 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 (con’t) 

Page 70 of 123



Page 10 of 41 
 

 

  
Fair Expenses - Direct      

 
 

  

Agriculture/Livestock Division 547,000   504,000   438,000   $250,000 Premium pay (prize $) for livestock exhibitors - cattle, 
horses, pigs. 
$45,000 Coordinator (1) wages for livestock exhibits. 
$40,000 Contracted barn/stall cleaning service. 
$20,000 Judges fees. 
$75,000 Farm helpers during fair. 

          

  

Community Arts Division 136,000   98,000   100,000  

 

$55,000 Coordinator wages (1). 
$20,000 Assistant helpers (5). 
$25,000 Premium pay (prize $) for exhibitors. 

          

  

Grounds Entertainment 429,000   423,000   399,000  

 

$125,000 Special acts - lumberjacks, circus, petting zoo, Jumping 
Jacks, Rapper Rock, etc. 
$85,000 Coordinator wages (1). 
$75,000 MSU "Miracle of Life" birthing exhibit. 
$25,000 Assistant Coordinator (1). 
$20,000 Parking lot attendants. 
$10,000 Support personnel - "runners," volunteer meals, contest 
corner. 

          

  

Professional Entertainment 438,000   354,000   230,000  

 

$150,000 Headliner entertainers - main acts. 
$50,000 Union stage hands. 
$30,000 Acoustical sound/light equipment rentals/set-up. 

          
  

Fair Expenses 1,266,000  
 

1,052,000  
 

1,557,000  
 

See attached details. 

          
  

Depreciation $330,000   $329,000   $329,000  
 

Annual depreciation expenses on buildings/equipment. 

  
Road Paving Expense 0  

 
152,000  

 
0  

 
Grant from a State Agency for road paving. 

          

  

TOTAL OPERATING 
EXPENSES $5,056,000  

 
$4,962,000  

 
$5,225,000  

  
          

  

NET OPERATING LOSS ($310,000)  ($961,000)  ($1,802,000) 

 

State made payments to MEFA in (1) FY2007=$0, (2) 
FY2008=$493,000, and (3) FY2009=$1,624,000. 

* Based on Auditor General's reports for 9/30 fiscal year ends rounded to nearest $1,000. 

ATTACHMENT 2 (con’t) 

Page 71 of 123



Page 11 of 41 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 
MICHIGAN STATE FAIRGROUNDS 

FAIR EXPENSES DETAIL 
FISCAL YEAR 2009 

   $235,000  
 

Utilities billed to Fair three months - July, August, September - electric, gas, water, sewer 
187,000  

 
Advertising media - billboards, TV ads, bus sideboards, flyers, etc. 

125,000  
 

Contractual janitorial services - cleaning restrooms/porta johns/grounds 
91,000  

 
Contractual security guards - augment State Police 

80,000  
 

Ticket Sellers (sellers paid - takers volunteer) 
75,000  

 
General liability insurance charge from State pool 

65,000  
 

Carpenters/fringes on site for prep and to keep Fair running 

50,000  
 

Electrical contractors on site 24-7 for hook-up & to be sure all electrical devices run properly (two separate firms - Motor City Electric under State 
$25K bid limit) 

40,000  
 

Rental of equipment - porta johns, tables, chairs, radios, etc. 
39,000   State Police overtime & hotels; regular wage costs were not billed to State Fair, as they are covered by the State Police budget; no billing for 

Wayne County Sheriffs or Detroit Police 
33,000  

 
Advertising agency flat fee plus commercial TV ad productions (not Berline in 2009) 

25,000  
 

First aid services - contract with American Red Cross; cost includes on site ambulance 
20,000  

 
Catering expenses - Governor's luncheon, volunteer meals, sponsor's luncheon 

15,000  
 

Golf cart rentals 
10,000  

 
Manure removal 

467,000  
 

Unidentified expenses (NOT ABLE TO OBTAIN BREAKDOWNS) 

   $1,557,000  
  

   

Page 72 of 123



Page 12 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan 

 

Huron–Clinton Metropolitan Authority  
Michigan State Fairground 

 

Executive Summary  
Facility Condition Assessment Report 

May 7, 2010 
  

SmithGroup was retained on March 11, 2010 by the Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority (HCMA) to assess the current 
condition of portions of the Michigan State Fairgrounds (MSF) as part of a due diligence study.  A previous assessment 
was performed by SmithGroup in October of 2003 for the HCMA for similar reasons.  The following Report includes an 
assessment of the current condition of many of the facilities and grounds and, where applicable, a comparison to their 
condition in 2003.  
This report is the result of field investigations during the late March and early April of 2010, and it includes comprehensive 
information about the Fairground’s buildings, surrounding grounds, electrical and mechanical systems, as well as 
estimated costs for “one-time repairs” to return each to working condition. Working condition is defined as not new 
condition, but rather a condition that allows safe use. In all instances, timely and continual maintenance and capital 
improvements will be necessary to keep the Fairgrounds in working condition.  Because fourteen of the sixteen buildings 
assessed had been mothballed by the State of Michigan (State), this assessment was not based on tests of the building 
system’s functionality (e.g. plumbing , heating, etc.).  In addition, routine maintenance needs and their costs were not 
included because insufficient information was available on the intended use of each building. The assessment also 
addresses bringing restroom facilities into compliance with ADA regulations.  
 
It should be noted that the assessment provides information only on aboveground buildings and facilities, and only those 
items that are visible and readily accessible for inspection.  It does not include assessment of covered building 
components, underground utilities or infrastructure, or of environmental conditions.  
 
It is understood that the southerly 40 acres of the MSF property is proposed to be leased to others, while the northerly 
120 acres is being considered for lease by HCMA.  Therefore, as directed by HCMA, the Bandshell, Dodge Pavilion, 
Community Arts Building and Hudson Auditorium were not included in the assessment.  However, some facilities were 
assessed which are located in the southerly 40-acre area.  The Coliseum Beef and Dairy Cattle Building, and multiple 
livestock buildings and their related site amenities are included in this assessment, being in the northerly area, but they 
were not included in the previous 2003 assessment.  The summary report has separated the northerly area from the 
southerly area.  
 
When comparing the condition of facilities in 2003 to their current condition it is SmithGroup’s opinion that the underlying 
factor causing an increase in the quantity and severity of required repairs is deferred maintenance.  Deferred maintenance 
results in much more than an increase in repair costs due to escalation; it often results in collateral damage, irreversible 
damage to the original component or in extreme cases, lose of use of a building or system.   
  
The following summary of significant work by discipline is supported three tables: Summary of Cost and Conditions 
(Tables 1 and 2) and Additional Relevant Project Costs (Table 3).   

 

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 

Page 73 of 123



Page 13 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan 

 
GROUNDS  
The condition of the grounds has deteriorated measurably since 2003 due to what, in our opinion is scaled back weekly 
upkeep and deferred maintenance.  Examples of this are planting beds that appeared to have been well maintained at the 
time of the 2003 assessment but now are overrun with weeds and “weed” trees that have grown against foundations and 
in fence lines.  There are also multiple areas containing vehicular rutting within the sod areas.  Lack of maintenance has 
produced “weed trees” many of which have grown and matured between the 2003 and 2010 assessments.  
 
Paved parking areas have further deteriorated, and as a result, vast areas are now in need of rebuilding.  The exception 
to this is certain roads which have recently been resurfaced.  The Railroad Area and Midway Area were not assessed 
because they have no significant associated use.  

 
ARCHITECTURAL  
The condition of the buildings assessed in 2003 and reassessed as part of this work are in worse condition overall.  Refer 
to Tables 1 and 2 for a list of buildings assessed in 2003 and 2010.  For example, with the exception of the Newer 
Bathroom, most roofs are damaged and are allowing water infiltration that is damaging the structure and interior finishes.  
Masonry that was previously cracked is now spalled and displaced, a condition that typically results in collateral damage 
to adjacent components.  
 
Buildings new to this assessment were without a 2003 benchmark for comparison, but suffice it to say that their 
overall condition reflects systemic deferred maintenance.  Most were observed in general in 2003, and we can report 
that most are in worse condition.    
 
The underlying factor is deferred maintenance that typically results in accelerated deterioration of the component in 
question, collateral damage to adjacent components and in extreme instances, loss of use of the affected building or 
component.  Two examples of this are the Milk House with its collapsed roof and North Restroom with its severely 
damaged connector.    
 
No observed conditions, with the exception of the collapsed roof on the Milk House, were considered major structural 
deficiencies requiring immediate repair or reconstruction.  

 
INTERIORS  
The interiors of the buildings assessed in 2010 were evaluated from a functional standpoint without taking into 
consideration aesthetics or building amenities expected in a new building of its type.  The vast majority of the assessed 
buildings are functional and require little effort to make them usable, assuming their current use remains.  That being said, 
the majority of the buildings do not meet current ADA toilet room requirements.  For buildings determined to be in fair to 
good condition, the ADA toilet room upgrades are noted as optional, as the modifications are not required until the 
building undergoes a major renovation.     
 
The items affecting the interior assessment the most appear to be the result of vandalism.  Multiple toilet rooms 
throughout the grounds have been scavenged for parts and are now missing water supplies, drains and even flush 
valves.  As stated previously, because most buildings had been mothballed and systems could not be tested, the extent 
of the hidden effects of vandalism is not fully known, as the facilities’ functions were not tested.  
 
Additional interior deficiencies are a result of exterior envelope failures, which should be corrected prior to repairing the 
interiors (e.g. deteriorated ceilings due to roof leaks, water infiltration through exterior walls).  

 
 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 74 of 123



Page 14 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan 

 
MECHANICAL  

The condition of the buildings mechanical systems at the Fairgrounds ranges from poor to good condition. There are 
some facilities and buildings in which no mechanical systems presently exist.  The majority of the buildings’ mechanical 
systems were not fully operational because some equipment components were decommissioned or systems had been 
drained as part of the mothballing process; the exceptions being the Joe Dumars’ Fieldhouse and portions of the Horse 
Barn.  It appears that the State has removed all refrigerant from air conditioning systems at the present time.  These 
systems will need to have refrigerant replaced, or coordination with the State will be needed to have the refrigerant 
reinstalled before the equipment and systems can be restarted.  It was noted during the field investigation that the State is 
intending to remove the four ventilation and air conditioning units serving the Michigan Mart Building.  Many of the 
plumbing fixtures were in disrepair, were obsolete or had been removed, and these are addressed in more detail in the 
Architectural Interiors section of the report.   

 
ELECTRICAL  
The condition of the electrical systems at the Fairgrounds ranges from poor to good.  The existing site overhead 
distribution system is functional but dated and has not changed appreciatively since the last assessment.  There are 
several code violations with the overhead distribution such as low hanging wires, leaning utility poles and unprotected 
cables.  Some of the buildings have obsolete electrical systems that have reached the end of their useful life.  Generally 
the lighting in the main portions of the buildings is in good condition, having been replaced with low-bay type high 
intensity discharge (HID) fixtures.  The remainder of the lighting in the buildings is typically either not functional or not 
energy efficient. With the exception of the Fieldhouse, the buildings on site do not have a functioning telephone system 
and the telecommunications cabling is obsolete and in poor condition.  

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 75 of 123



Page 15 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan  

 

 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 76 of 123



Page 16 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan  

 

 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 77 of 123



Page 17 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan  

 

 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 78 of 123



Page 18 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan  

 

 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 79 of 123



Page 19 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan  

 

 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 80 of 123



Page 20 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 81 of 123



Page 21 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 82 of 123



Page 22 of 41 
 

Michigan State Fairground Assessment Report  
Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority   
Detroit, Michigan  

 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 83 of 123



Page 23 of 41 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 (con’t) 

Page 84 of 123



Page 24 of 41 
 

 
     ATTACHMENT 5 
 

TABULATION OF PROPOSALS 
        PROPOSALS RECEIVED @ 4:00 P.M., MONDAY, MAY 3, 2010 

    Request For Proposals - Environmental Services  
        Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment (ESA), Hazardous Material Survey, Phase II ESA, Baseline Environmental Assessment 

Michigan State Fairgrounds Property, Wayne County, Michigan 
 

         Submitting Firms Shown in Alphabetical Order 
  

    
ASTI CRA 

Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr 
& Huber, Inc. 

    

10448 Citation Drive, 
Ste 100 

14496 Sheldon Road, 
Suite 200 

39255 Country Club Drive, 
Ste B-25 

    
Brighton, MI  48116 Plymouth, MI  48170 Farmington Hills, MI  48331 

       ITEM           AMOUNT       AMOUNT   AMOUNT 
Pt. 1 Parcel 1 - Area North of Mackinac Straits Avenue (Approx. 120 Acres)             

                    
A Perform Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA)    $2,100.00   $5,200.00   $2,650.00 
B Conduct a Hazardous Materials Survey (HMS)       $2,500.00 Note 1 $7,093.00 Note 1 $8,750.00 
C Conduct Phase II Environmental Site Assessment       $14,480.00 Note 2 $13,643.00 Note 2 $37,450.00 
D Conduct Baseline Environmental Assessment and Due Care Compliance Note 3 $4,750.00 Note 4 $8,700.00 Note 4 $5,500.00 
                    
  Subtotal Part 1 - Parcel 1       $23,830.00   $34,636.00   $54,350.00 
                    

Pt. 2 Parcel 2 - Area South of Mackinac Straits Avenue (Approx. 40 Acres)             
                    
A Perform Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA)   $2,000.00   $4,200.00   $2,000.00 
B Conduct a Hazardous Materials Survey (HMS)       $1,500.00 Note 1 $5,356.00 Note 1 $6,980.00 
C Conduct Phase II Environmental Site Assessment       $11,520.00 Note 2 $11,672.00 Note 2 $24,700.00 
D Conduct Baseline Environmental Assessment and Due Care Compliance Note 3 $4,750.00 Note 4 $8,700.00 Note 4 $5,500.00 
                    
  Subtotal Part 2 - Parcel 2       $19,770.00   $29,928.00   $39,180.00 
                    

 
TOTAL 

   
$43,600.00 

 
$64,564.00 

 
$93,530.00 

          
 

Note 1:  For HMS, estimated number of samples for analysis included 
   

 
Note 2: Cost Breakdown included for Ph II ESA 

   
 

Note 3:  Estimate Based on Category N BEA Preparation 
   

 
Note 4:  Estimate Based on Category S BEA Preparation 

    

Page 85 of 123



Page 25 of 41 
 

 
 
     ATTACHMENT (con’t) 
 

TABULATION OF PROPOSALS 
        PROPOSALS RECEIVED @ 4:00 P.M., MONDAY, MAY 3, 2010 

    Request For Proposals - Environmental Services  
        Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment (ESA), Hazardous Material Survey, Phase II ESA, Baseline Environmental Assessment 

Michigan State Fairgrounds Property, Wayne County, Michigan 
 

         Submitting Firms Shown in Alphabetical Order 
  

    

PM Environmental, 
Inc. 

Professional Services 
Industries 

Testing Engineers & 
Consultants 

    

4080 West Eleven 
Mile Rd 45749 Helm Street PO Box 249 

    
Berkely, MI  48072 Plymouth, MI  48170 Troy, MI  48099-0249 

       ITEM           AMOUNT       AMOUNT   AMOUNT 
Pt. 1 Parcel 1 - Area North of Mackinac Straits Avenue (Approx. 120 Acres)             

                    
A Perform Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA)    $4,500.00   $6,500.00   $3,200.00 
B Conduct a Hazardous Materials Survey (HMS)     Note 1 $1,570.00 Note 1 $2,200.00 Note 1 $10,040.00 
C Conduct Phase II Environmental Site Assessment     Note 2 $93,612.00 

 
$5,050.00 

 
$31,760.00 

D Conduct Baseline Environmental Assessment and Due Care Compliance Note 4 $7,750.00 Note 3 $4,200.00 Note 4 $7,350.00 
                    
  Subtotal Part 1 - Parcel 1       $107,432.00   $17,950.00   $52,350.00 
                    

Pt. 2 Parcel 2 - Area South of Mackinac Straits Avenue (Approx. 40 Acres)             
                    
A Perform Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA)   $3,000.00   $1,900.00   $2,600.00 
B Conduct a Hazardous Materials Survey (HMS)     Note 1 $745.00 Note 1 $1,700.00 Note 1 $5,470.00 
C Conduct Phase II Environmental Site Assessment     Note 2 $14,726.00 

 
$5,400.00 

 
$13,336.00 

D Conduct Baseline Environmental Assessment and Due Care Compliance Note 4 $2,500.00 Note 3 $3,000.00 Note 4 $6,410.00 
                    
  Subtotal Part 2 - Parcel 2       $20,971.00   $12,000.00   $27,816.00 
                    

 
TOTAL 

   
$128,403.00 

 
$29,950.00 

 
$80,166.00 

          
 

Note 1:  For HMS, estimated number of samples for analysis included 
   

 
Note 2: Cost Breakdown included for Ph II ESA 

   
 

Note 3:  Estimate Based on Category N BEA Preparation 
   

 
Note 4:  Estimate Based on Category S BEA Preparation 

     
 
 

Page 86 of 123



Page 26 of 41 
 

 
    ATTACHMENT 5 (con’t) 
 

TABULATION OF PROPOSALS 
        PROPOSALS RECEIVED @ 4:00 P.M., MONDAY, MAY 3, 2010 

    Request For Proposals - Environmental Services  
        Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment (ESA), Hazardous Material Survey, Phase II ESA, Baseline Environmental Assessment 

Michigan State Fairgrounds Property, Wayne County, Michigan 
 

         Submitting Firms Shown in Alphabetical Order 
  

    

URS Corporation Great 
Lakes  

    

27777 Franklin Road 
Suite 2000 

    
Southfield, MI  48034 

       ITEM           AMOUNT 
Pt. 1 Parcel 1 - Area North of Mackinac Straits Avenue (Approx. 120 Acres)     

            
A Perform Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA)    $7,870.00 
B Conduct a Hazardous Materials Survey (HMS)       $5,706.00 
C Conduct Phase II Environmental Site Assessment       $38,315.00 
D Conduct Baseline Environmental Assessment and Due Care Compliance Note 4 $10,040.00 
            
  Subtotal Part 1 - Parcel 1       $61,931.00 
            

Pt. 2 Parcel 2 - Area South of Mackinac Straits Avenue (Approx. 40 Acres)     
            
A Perform Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA)   $5,750.00 
B Conduct a Hazardous Materials Survey (HMS)       $2,820.00 
C Conduct Phase II Environmental Site Assessment       $19,122.00 
D Conduct Baseline Environmental Assessment and Due Care Compliance Note 4 $8,190.00 
            
  Subtotal Part 2 - Parcel 2       $35,882.00 
            

 
TOTAL 

   
$97,813.00 

    
          
 

Note 1:  For HMS, estimated number of samples for analysis included 
   

 
Note 2: Cost Breakdown included for Ph II ESA 

   
 

Note 3:  Estimate Based on Category N BEA Preparation 
   

 
Note 4:  Estimate Based on Category S BEA Preparation 

      

Page 87 of 123



Page 27 of 41 
 

 
 
ATTCHMENT 5 (con’t) 
 
 

Proposals were not received from: ARCADIS U.S., Inc.  Detroit, MI 

 

Atwell-Hicks  Southfield, MI 
CTI and Associates, Inc.  Wixom, MI 
NTH Consultants, Ltd.  Northville, MI 
SME Soils and Materials Engineers Plymouth, MI 

 
 

Page 88 of 123



ge 28 of 41 
 

ATTACHMENT 6  

Page 89 of 123



Page 29 of 41 
 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 6 (con’t) 

Page 90 of 123



Page 30 of 41 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 6 (con’t) 

Page 91 of 123



Page 31 of 41 
 

ATTACHMENT 6 (con’t) 

Page 92 of 123



Page 32 of 41 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 6 (con’t) 

Page 93 of 123



Page 33 of 41 
 

TTACHMENT 6 (con’t) 

Page 94 of 123



Page 34 of 41 
 

ATTACHMENT 7 

Page 95 of 123



Page 35 of 41 
 

 
 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 8 

Page 96 of 123



Page 36 of 41 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 8 

Page 97 of 123



Page 37 of 41 
 

 
  ATTACHMENT 8     

   CONCEPT 1   CONCEPT 2 

   NEW METROPARK including the STATE FAIR   NEW METROPARK without the STATE FAIR 
EAST ZONE     

1  Existing Gravel  a. Maintain gravel area for State Fair parking (3600 cars) b. 
Pave a portion for year-round parking (400 cars). c. 
Remove one third of gravel and restore with topsoil, seed, 
and trees.  

1  Remove gravel and restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 
Construct parking (400 cars) 

2  NEW  Develop picnic areas with shelters and games 2  Develop picnic areas with shelters and games 
3  NEW  Construct restrooms 3  Construct restrooms 
4  NEW  Construct an entertainment facility 4  Construct an entertainment facility 
5  NEW  Construct age appropriate playgrounds 5  Construct age appropriate playgrounds 
6  NEW  Construct water playground 6  Construct water playground 
7  NEW  Construct paved trails 7  Construct paved trails 
8  NEW  Develop sports fields 8  Develop sports field 

CENTRAL ZONE     
1  Large Horse Barn Renovate for the State Fair and Metropark maintenance  1  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 

2  South Riding Ring Renovate for the State Fair 2  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 

3  Main Horse Barn Renovate for the State Fair 3  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 

4  North Riding Ring Renovate for the State Fair 4  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 

5  Pole Barn Demolish 5  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 

6  NEW  Construct court games such as basketball, tennis, and 
skate equipment. Use paved court games area for State 
Fair amusement rides  

6  Construct court games such as basketball, tennis, and 
skate equipment 

      Construct paved trails 
WEST ZONE     

1  Restrooms (Bld 1) Renovate for the State Fair 1  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 

2  Milk House Renovate for the State Fair 2  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 

3  Cattle Bld Renovate for the State Fair 3  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 
 

Page 98 of 123



Page 38 of 41 
 

 

  CONCEPT 1   CONCEPT 2 
   NEW METROPARK including the STATE FAIR   NEW METROPARK without the STATE FAIR 

4  Coliseum Renovate for the State Fair and a Metropark market for 
prepared food, produce, and retail  

4  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 

5  North Food Court Renovate for the State Fair and  a Metropark group rental 
facility  

5  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 

6  Dumars 
Fieldhouse  

Continue Lease 6  Continue Lease 

7  Sheep Barn Renovate for the State Fair 7  Convert to outdoor storage for Metropark 
8  Michigan Mart Bld Renovate for the State Fair and Metropark operations office 

and park police station 
8  Convert  for a Metropark operations office, maintenance 

facility,  and park police station 
9  White Hall Demolish 9  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 

10  Poultry/Rabbit Bld Demolish 10  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 
11  Goat Barns Demolish 11  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 
12  Restrooms (Bld 2) Renovate for the State Fair and Metropark 12  Renovate for Metropark. 
13  Restrooms (Bld 3) Renovate for the State Fair and Metropark 13  Demolish. Restore with topsoil, seed, and trees. 
14  Pocket Park Part of the State Fair and Metropark 14  Included with Metropark 
15  Asphalt Parking 

(NE) 
State Fair and Metropark parking (300 cars) 15  Convert to court games area 

16  Asphalt Parking 
(SE) 

State Fair and Metropark parking (400 cars) 16  Metropark parking (400 cars) 

17  NEW  Develop a "Town Square"  17  Develop picnic areas with shelters and games 
18  NEW  Renovate roads and walks with new pavements 18  Construct paved trails 
19  NEW  Include brick pavers for color and detail    
20  NEW  Include decorative site furnishings, benches, trash cans, 

and lighting, to improve character 
   

21  NEW  Renovate lawn areas: topsoil, seed, and irrigation    
22  NEW  Construct new picnic shelters    
23  NEW  Construct small playground    
24  NEW  Construct a small water play fountain    
25  NEW  Construct a small entertainment plaza/shelter    

ATTACHMENT 8 (con’t) 

Page 99 of 123



Page 39 of 41 
 

ATTACHMENT 9 

Detroit Recreation Department 2005 Strategic Master Plan 

The c ity of D etroit Recreation D epartment ( DRD) i s r esponsible f or pr oviding r ecreation a nd leisure 
activities, and related parks and facilities to the nearly 900,000 people living in the city. In 2005 the DRD 
completed a Strategic Master Plan which focused on all of the city-owned parks and recreation centers.  
As hard times have increased, the system has lost users, resources and attention. Peaking in 1950 at 1.8 
million, D etroit’s pop ulation dec lined t o 9 50,000 over t he n ext 50  years. T oday the c ity is s till losing 
population, but at a much slower rate of decline. The changing population patterns across the city have 
resulted in some areas being over served and others underserved by accessible recreation facilities.  

Detroit has the underpinnings of  a highly successful parks and recreation system to serve i ts residents 
but has  bee n t he t arget of  c riticism for i ts per ceived f ailure t o pr ovide c ity r esidents with hi gh qua lity, 
accessible recreational opportunities. Recent attempts to deal with park problems have been made on a 
case-by-case b asis with limited r esources. B y preparing t he Strategic M aster P lan t he D RD is 
demonstrating a c ommitment t o d o a bet ter j ob. T he pr oject i ncludes an inventory a nd e valuation of  
existing facilities, a public attitude survey, and a strategy to make improvements to the park system.   

The results of the public attitude survey imply a number of different policy implications. About one-third of 
all r esidents do n ot ut ilize parks or  r ecreation c enters, and t hey d o not  n ecessarily go ou tside t he c ity 
limits o r u tilize non-city-owned facilities. I nstead, non-users say they are too busy or  are not physically 
able to enjoy recreation opportunities within the city. The city may not be able to reach these people with 
improved programs or facilities as their reasons for not recreating are personal. Another third expressed 
dissatisfaction because the parks are not well maintained, clean, and safe. About four-fifths of all 
respondents believe that priorities should be placed on either improving or updating existing facilities as 
opposed t o b uilding new facilities. T he c ity h as a ll or  a lmost al l of  t he r ecreation f acility-types t hat 
residents w ant – residents j ust w ant m ore of  t hem. T he most des ired f acilities ar e b asketball c ourts, 
playgrounds, picnic areas or grassy areas, and clean restrooms. There is a clear preference by 
respondents for the city to focus on the smaller, more localized parks with basic amenities than the larger, 
regional parks with more specialized facilities. However, this is not to say that regional parks should be 
neglected. For example, Belle I sle Park is considerably m ore popu lar and v isited than the next several 
parks combined, and it serves as a huge source of satisfaction for city residents. 
 
Summary and Key Findings of DRD 2005 Strategic Master Plan 
 
Thirty-one percent (31%) of Detroit residents do not use the city-owned parks or recreation centers.   

Of those who DO NOT use city-owned facilities: 

- Three percent (3%) prefer to use facilities outside of the city limits. 
- Many are too busy. 
- Many have physical limitations.   

Of those who DO use city-owned facilities: 

- One-third (1/3) are satisfied to very satisfied with the facilities. 
- One-third (1/3) are neutral about their level of satisfaction. 
- One-third (1/3) are not satisfied with the facilities. 
-  

Reasons for their satisfaction include:  

- Convenience 
- Diversity of facility types 
- Accessibility 
- Geographic distribution 

 
 

Page 100 of 123



Page 40 of 41 
 

However, respondents want more of the basic facilities: 

- Basketball courts 
- Swimming pools 
- Neighborhood parks 
- Picnic areas  
- Playgrounds 

 
The c ity does not of fer hi ghly s pecialized f acilities s uch as  equestrian t rails, water p arks, a musement 
parks that were mentioned as desirable. Respondents would also like the existing parks and facilities to 
be safer, cleaner, and better maintained.  

At least half of the respondents visit a city park or recreation center at least once a month and stay there 
at l east t wo h ours or  m ore per  visit. Belle I sle i s c learly t he m ost popu lar p ark i n t he c ity; however, 
numerous ot her f acilities have be en visited, s uggesting t hat r esidents ha ve a s trong pr eference f or 
smaller parks closer to their residence. The most popular types of facilities were: 

- grassy, passive parks without sports fields, 
- playgrounds, 
- recreation centers. 

 
Considering t hat m any r espondents s tated walking a nd b icycling are t wo of  t heir f avorite l eisure t ime 
activities walking trails and bike paths are not as highly utilized. This suggests that people  
generally walk or bike close to home on neighborhood sidewalks or on the street.  
 
Respondents believe that: 

- City r esources s hould be used t o improve oper ations and m aintenance of  ex isting p arks and  
recreation centers.  

- The City should improve existing facilities instead of building new parks and recreation centers. 
- By a 3 to 1margin, respondents prefer small neighborhood parks that are close to home 

compared to large regional parks or recreation centers.  
 

Male respondents: 
- have a higher satisfaction level with the city recreation facilities than women.  
- are more likely to use and have a high satisfaction for sport fields and courts. 
 

Female respondents: 

- are less satisfied with city recreation facilities.  
- are more likely to visit playgrounds and swimming pools. 

 
Both men and women: 

- place the same level of importance on  improving ex isting facilities and increasing m aintenance 
budgets.  

- prefer hav ing m ore s mall neighborhood p arks and r ecreation c enters t hat ar e c lose t o h ome 
compared to fewer large specialized regional parks or recreation centers.  
 

Households with children were more likely to visit playgrounds, sport fields, swimming pools and 
recreation centers than those without children.  

DEMOGRAPHICS of RESPONDENTS 

African-American (77.4%) 
Caucasian (9.9%)  
Hispanic (2%) 
Native American (1%) 
Other (4.5%) 

Page 101 of 123



Page 41 of 41 
 

Unresponsive (5.2%)  

- Hispanics, Native Americans, and Others were more likely to visit city park facilities 
- Hispanics, Native Americans, and Others had an overall higher satisfaction rate than Caucasians 

or African Americans. 
- African A mericans w ere m ore l ikely t o v isit f acilities and hav e hi gher s atisfaction r ates t han 

Caucasians.  
- African Americans and Caucasians had similar preferences regarding improving existing facilities 

and increasing operation and maintenance budgets. 
- Hispanics, Native Americans, and Others had a higher preference for building new facilities. 

 

Page 102 of 123



HURON-CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY 
INTER-OFFICE COMMUNICATION 

 
 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Jayne Miller, Director 
DATE:  May 13, 2010 
RE:  Organizational Structure and Operational Improvements Project 
 
In ant icipation o f the upcoming r evenue dec lines, HCMA adm inistration pr oactively e valuated 
positions vacated t hrough at trition over t he past several years.  Through t his p rocess 19  full-
time positions have been eliminated and other positions have been redesigned in an effort to 
operate more efficiently with less cost.  Given the greater than anticipated revenue declines that 
are expected at l east through 2013 and the n eed for m ore s ignificant ex pense r eductions 
throughout t he or ganization, I  bel ieve i t i s t ime t o c omplete a c omprehensive r eview of  t he 
organization structure and work processes to become more effective and efficient in the delivery 
of our services.  The t iming of this work is crucial to integrate the structure of  the organization 
and how  we del iver s ervices w ith t he or ganization’s strategic p lan, w hich will s oon be 
completed.  In addition, this organizational structure and operational improvements project 
needs t o be c ompleted by September 2010 t o provide t he f ramework for development o f the 
2011 budget.   
 
I am  recommending t hat t he B oard au thorize t he hi ring o f D. Kerry Lay cock, C MC as t he 
consultant to execute and complete this project.  Mr. Laycock would facilitate an organizational 
review process, provide independent assessment and a written report summarizing the findings 
and recommendations.  The project is intended to accomplish three objectives: 
 

1. Engage t he o rganization i n a r eview pr ocess t o i dentify oppor tunities for improvement 
and organizational efficiencies. 

2. Provide an i ndependent as sessment o f t he or ganization and,  w here po ssible, 
benchmark it against comparable organizations. 

3. Provide recommendations on organizational structure and work process that produce 
efficiencies and align the organization to its emerging business strategy. 

 
The cost t o c omplete this pr oject i s t he guaranteed not to exceed price for c ompletion o f al l 
deliverables o f $25 ,600.00.  There a re no  addi tional fees o r ex penses as sociated w ith t his 
project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  It i s r ecommended t hat t he B oard o f C ommissioners aut horize t he 
execution of  t he at tached c ontract w ith D . K erry Lay cock for the no t to ex ceed amount o f 
$25,600.00 to complete the Organizational Structure and Operational Improvements Project.  It 
is f urther r ecommended t hat funding for t hese services be pr ovided t hrough t he A uthority’s 
Reserve for Future Contingencies.   
 
  

Page 103 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 4



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
CONSULTING PROPOSAL 

 
FOR 

HURON-CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY 
 

APRIL 9, 2010 
 

OFFERED BY 
 
 

D. KERRY LAYCOCK, LLC 
180 LITTLE LAKE DRIVE, SUITE 6A 

ANN ARBOR, MI 48103-6219 
(734) 222-0584 

POC: D. KERRY LAYCOCK, CMC® 
 

kerry@dklaycock.com 
 

www.dklaycock.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104 of 123

mailto:kerry@dklaycock.com�
http://www.dklaycock.com/�
shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 4-2



        
 
 

 
 

 
D. Kerry Laycock, CMC® 

 

Consulting Proposal     Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority  
Organization Review  April 9, 2010 

Understanding of Organization and  Request 
 

The Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority (MCMA) is a regional special park district 
encompassing Wayne, Oakland, Macomb, Washtenaw and Livingston counties. It was created 
by the Michigan State Legislature in Act No.147 of the Public Acts of 1939, and was approved by 
the residents of the five counties.  

 
HCMA is governed by a seven-member Board of Commissioners. Two of the members 

are selected by the governor to represent the district at large, and the other five are selected by 
the Board of Commissioners from each of the five member counties. 

 
Currently, 13 Metroparks covering almost 24,000 acres, serve about 9.5 million visitors 

annually. The Metroparks are located along the Huron and Clinton rivers, providing a greenbelt 
around the Detroit metropolitan area. The parks are generally more than 1,000 acres each, with 
Stony Creek and Kensington being more than 4,300 acres. 

 
HCMA is funded by a property tax levy of one-quarter of one mill and by revenues from 

vehicle entry fees and other user fees for various facilities such as golf courses.  As with all units 
of government in Michigan, HCMA is beginning to see a decline in millage revenue as property 
values decline.  The Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) reports that 
Southeast Michigan’s real property taxable value declined for the first time, region-wide, in 2009 
by 3.5 percent. The continued decline in housing values drove the decline in State Equalized 
Value (SEV), and now, taxable value.  SECOG predicts that SEV will drop by 15.7 percent in 
2010 and 9.4 percent in 2011. Taxable value is forecasted to drop by 10.8 percent in 2010 and 
6.7 percent in 2011. 

 
While some continue to suggest that this is a cyclical downturn, a growing number of 

experts see the decline as a prolonged structural change for Michigan.  Although not suffering 
the catastrophic budget reductions faced by many local units of government in the state, HCMA 
realizes the need to respond to these changes to assure its continued success.   

 
Among HCMA’s efforts to assure its success in the face of these challenges is an 

ongoing strategic planning process.  This process will yield a clear direction for the organization 
and serve as a guide to action as the organization moves forward.  Complementary to this effort, 
the newly appointed Director has requested a review of the organization to identify opportunities 
for efficiencies and to align the organization to its strategic plan. 

 
The Director seeks the support of an independent consultant to facilitate an 

organizational review process, provide independent assessment and a written report 
summarizing the findings and recommendations. This proposal is offered in response to this 
request.  
 

Page 105 of 123



        
 
 

 
 

 
D. Kerry Laycock, CMC® 

 

Consulting Proposal     Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority  
Organization Review  April 9, 2010 

Project objectives 
 
 This project is intended to accomplish three key objectives: 
 

1. Engage the organization in a review process to identify opportunities for improvement 
and organizational efficiencies. 

 
2. Provide an independent assessment of the organization and, where possible, 

benchmark it against comparable organizations. 
 

3. Provide recommendations on organizational structure and work process that produce 
efficiencies and align the organization to its emerging business strategy. 

 
 

Work and Deliverables 
 

Structure defines the functional relationships and authority within an organization.  
Processes define how work is accomplished and shape the roles of individual members who 
perform the work.  All of this flows from a clear definition of organizational purpose and business 
strategy.  This alignment is described graphically in Exhibit 1.  I see my role in this project as 
primarily one of helping to assure that the organization can effectively fulfill its mission within the 
resources available.   

 
 

 
 
      Exhibit 1 

Organizational Performance Model 
 

Strategy Structure Process People Performance

Alignment and Clarity Drive Performance  
 
 

 
 
 
 My approach is to engage the organization where appropriate to gain insights from those 
with the greatest knowledge and experience, and to build support for necessary changes.  At the 
same time, I will provide independent assessment, where appropriate, to provide new ideas and 
to challenge deeply held assumptions. 
 
 As such, my work will begin with a steering committee comprised of the Executive 
Director, and key staff.  This group will help identify priorities, align the project to the strategic 
planning process and review recommendations. 

Page 106 of 123



        
 
 

 
 

 
D. Kerry Laycock, CMC® 

 

Consulting Proposal     Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority  
Organization Review  April 9, 2010 

 
 I will work with key staff from each functional area to assess current performance and 
identify opportunities for improvement.  This will include a review of major work processes and 
current job definitions.  I will interview staff, work with teams where appropriate and review 
internal documents.  Where possible, I will benchmark comparable organizations for structure, 
staffing and operational performance. 
 
 The organizational review will seek to answer questions such as: 
 

• How do we measure performance?  How does the organization evaluate and 
respond to these measures? 

• Is this function mission critical?  What are the consequences to the organization if it 
were not performed? 

• Is there a way this function can be performed more efficiently? 
• Looking across the organization, are there ways to increase flexibility and deploy 

resources more efficiently? 
• Are our work processes clearly defined and can we measure the value that they 

produce? 
• Do current job definitions align to our business strategy and support our work 

processes? 
• Are resources properly allocated to organizational priorities? 
• What things are we not doing that we should be?  Does the strategic plan move us in 

a new direction that will require new competencies or resources? 
 
 As the project progresses, additional questions will emerge and shape the investigation.  
These are not expected to significantly alter the scope of the project.   
 
 The specific deliverables for this project are: 
 

• A detailed work plan (developed in conjunction with the steering committee) 
• Interim progress reports as required by the Executive Director 
• High-level process maps and organizational metrics 
• A written report summarizing key findings, data, analysis and recommendations. 

 
 
Project Management 
 
 Project management means managing scope, cost and schedule.  I will manage this 
project consistent with best practices in project management.  As such, the first deliverable is a 
written project plan to be reviewed and approved by the steering committee.  I will make regular 
reports of my progress and review key findings and recommendations as they emerge.  Anything 
that would alter the scope of this project would be discussed in terms of the implications for cost 
and schedule.  Changes would require steering committee approval.  I will be available when 
required and welcome frequent communication and feedback. 
 
 
 
Project Timeline 

Page 107 of 123



        
 
 

 
 

 
D. Kerry Laycock, CMC® 

 

Consulting Proposal     Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority  
Organization Review  April 9, 2010 

 
 I am available to begin this work April 3, 2010 and expect to complete the work no later 
than September 15, 1010. 
 
 
Project Cost 
 
 My fee for professional services is $160.00 per hour.  I estimate this project to require 
160 hours or less.  The guaranteed not to exceed price for completion of all deliverables 
describe here is $25,600.00.  There are no additional fees or expenses associated with this 
project. 
 
 
Recent Experience and References 
 

Project Description Reference Contact 

I am currently engaged by Washtenaw County to help plan and 
manage the transition process for a new County Administrator, 
to advise on the reorganization of the county, to help the 
Washtenaw County Board of Commissioners (BOC) define 
clear priorities for the next budget cycle and to align 
organizational changes to BOC priorities.  This is the most 
recent of many projects I have done in Washtenaw County over 
the past 20-plus years.   

 
Verna McDaniel 

County Administrator 
Washtenaw County 
220 N. Main Street 

P. O. Box 8645 
Ann Arbor, MI 48107-8645 

734- 222-3401 
mcdaniev@ewashtenaw.org 

 
I was hired by the newly elected Sheriff in November, 2008 to 
work with his transition team.  During 2009, I created and 
facilitated the Interagency Cooperation Team (ICT) comprised 
of the Sheriff and senior law enforcement officials in 
Washtenaw County.  Through the ICT process, we have 
consolidated into a single SWAT team, consolidated into a 
single crisis negotiation team and coordinated canine 
resources throughout the County.  I have also led a team 
responsible for transferring the Ypsilanti Police Department 
(YPD) dispatch function to the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s 
Office and co-locating the Sheriff’s and Ann Arbor Police 
Department dispatch.  The dispatch project has reduced costs 
for YPD, increased revenue for the Sheriff’s Office and saved 
jobs.  In 2010, we are working on projects related to 
investigations (computer forensics, polygraph and accident 
investigations) and cross-jurisdictional response protocols. 

 
Jerry Clayton 

Washtenaw County Sheriff 
2201 Hogback Road 
Ann Arbor, MI 48105 

734-973-4613 
claytonj@ewashtenaw.org 

 

Page 108 of 123

mailto:mcdaniev@ewashtenaw.org�
mailto:claytonj@ewashtenaw.org�


        
 
 

 
 

 
D. Kerry Laycock, CMC® 

 

Consulting Proposal     Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority  
Organization Review  April 9, 2010 

Project Description Reference Contact 

I have just completed an operational review of the Ann Arbor 
Housing Commission (AAHC).  Significant restructuring 
recommendations were adopted by the Housing Commission 
Board in January.  In addition, my recommendations detail a 
major new strategic focus for the organization that is intended 
to financially stabilize the organization and allow it to undertake 
major rehabilitation and redevelopment of its aging housing 
stock.   

 
Roger Fraser 

City Administrator 
City of Ann Arbor, Michigan 

100 N 5th Ave 
Ann Arbor, MI 48104 

734-994-2650 
rfraser@ci.ann-arbor.mi.us 

 

I recently completed an operational review of the City of Detroit, 
Department of Health and Welfare Promotion, Women, Infant 
and Children nutrition program.  The recommendations are 
intended to improve compliance with State and Federal 
regulations, improve customer service and enhance program 
efficiency.  A copy of my report is available upon request.  I am 
currently engaged by DHWP on a similar project for the Detroit 
Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program.  

 
Audrey E. Smith, MPH 

General Manager, 
Community Health Services 

City of Detroit 
Department of Health and 

Wellness Promotion 
Herman Kiefer Complex 

1151 Taylor 
Administrative Offices  

Third Floor 
Detroit, MI 48202 

313-876-4307 
 

SmithAE@detroitmi.gov 
 

 
 
Company Information 
 
 D. Kerry Laycock is a Michigan limited liability company.  I am a sole proprietor and the 
Managing Member of the LLC.   I have been an independent consultant for more than 26 years.  
I will be the single point of contact (POC) for both administrative and technical issues.  The 
company is located in Ann Arbor, Michigan and may be reached at the following: 
 

D. Kerry Laycock, CMC® 
Organizational Consultant 

Parkland Plaza Center, Suite 6A 
180 Little Lake Drive 

Ann Arbor, MI 48103-6219 
 

kerry@dklaycock.com 
 

Voice (734) 222-0584 Fax (734) 222-0585 Mobile (734) 358-6204 
 

www.dklaycock.com  
 

Page 109 of 123

mailto:rfraser@ci.ann-arbor.mi.us�
mailto:SmithAE@detroitmi.gov�
mailto:kerry@dklaycock.com�
http://www.dklaycock.com/�


  

 
 

HURON-CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY 
INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT AGREEMENT             

                  
 
 THIS AGREEMENT dated this ________________, by and between Huron-Clinton 
Metropolitan Authority, a public body corporate of the State of Michigan having offices at 13000 High 
Ridge Drive, Brighton, Michigan, 48114, hereinafter referred to as “Authority,” and 
___________________ whose legal address is _______________________________, 
hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”. 
 
 WHEREAS, Consultant has significant knowledge of and expertise relative to organizational 
structure and design and work process alignment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Authority desires to secure and have the advantages of Consultant’s expertise 
and knowledge as described herein, in connection with its activities; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived from this 
Agreement, Authority and Consultant agree as follows: 
 

1. Services Provided. 

The Authority hereby retains the services of the Consultant to perform the services as set 
forth in the attached consulting proposal dated ___________, which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit A and made part of this Agreement. 

 
2. Term and Times of Service. 

(a)  Effective Date:  This Agreement is effective as of ___________ (“Effective Date”). 
 

(b) Initial Term:  The initial term of this Agreement extends from the Effective Date until       
_________________ unless sooner terminated as provided in Section 10. 

 
(c) Extension:  The initial term of this Agreement may be extended by written mutual 

agreement between Consultant and Authority. 
 

(d) Service Period:  The term “Service Period” as used in this Agreement means the 
initial term of this Agreement and any extension. 

 
(e) Service Time:  All services hereunder will be performed by the Consultant at times as 

mutually agreed upon by the parties. 
 

(f) Availability:  Consultant will be available to provide services at the times stated 
during the service period, except during times of Consultant’s non-availability due to 
illness or emergency, and except other times as mutually agreed upon by the parties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 4-3



  

 
 

3. Compensation. 
 

The Authority agrees to pay to Consultant as follows: 
 
(a) Set fee:  The Authority will pay $_________________ per hour for services 

anticipated under this Agreement, for a guaranteed total, not to exceed amount, of 
$____________.  Consultant shall invoice the Authority on or about the first of the 
month for services rendered the previous month, and the Authority agrees to render 
payments within fifteen days of receipt of invoice. 

 
(b) Expenses:  There are no additional fees or expenses associated with this project. 

 
(c) Taxes:  Consultant will pay all taxes and other governmental charges, however, 

designated, which are levied or assessed upon any payment made to or on behalf of 
Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
4. Independent Contractor. 
 

(a) It is agreed that Consultant is an independent contractor.  Consultant, and 
employees, servants and agents of Consultant will not be deemed to be employees, 
servants or agents of the Authority and will not be entitled to any fringe benefits of 
the Authority, such as, but not limited to, health and accident insurance, workers’ 
compensation insurance, automobile insurance or costs, life insurance, pension 
benefits, paid vacation or sick leave, or longevity. 

 
(b) Employees of the Consultant shall be utilized only with written authorization of the 

Authority.  Consultant shall be responsible for paying all salaries, wages and other 
compensation which may be due its employees, servants or agents for performing 
services under the Agreement and for withholding and payment of all applicable 
taxes, including but not limited to, income and social security taxes, to the proper 
federal, state and local governments. 

 
5. Standard of Care. 

 
(a) Consultant shall perform services in a diligent and professional manner in accordance   

with the terms of this Agreement.  Consultant represents that professional services 
performed under this Agreement shall be performed in a manner consistent with the 
level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by other professional consultants in his field 
of expertise. 

 
(b) Consultant shall comply with all Authority policies with respect to safety and conduct, 

in accordance with Authority policy documentation as provided to Consultant.   
 

6. Authorized Representative. 
 

The authorized representative for the Authority with respect to this Agreement will be 
_____________________________________.  The authorized representative will 
provide instructions, receive information, and render decisions relative to this Agreement.  
Consultant shall coordinate his day-to-day activities with other persons as designated by 
the authorized representative. 

 
 

Page 111 of 123



  

 
 

 
7. Location, Equipment and Facilities. 
 

(a) Authority will furnish facilities, equipment and supplies which may be reasonably 
required in the performance of services at Authority property under this Agreement. 

 
(b) Consultant shall furnish his own transportation to and from all work locations.   

Consultant may use his own computer property, such as computer equipment, 
software and supplies at his own discretion, for use in the performance of services 
under this Agreement, however, Consultant shall be solely responsible for such 
Consultant-supplied property. 

 
8. Confidential Information. 
 

(a) Consultant shall hold in confidence and shall not use except as provided herein and 
shall not disclose to any third person any confidential information disclosed to 
Consultant at any time by Authority.  The term “confidential information” as used 
herein means any and all information which relates to the activities of Authority and 
which is not generally available to third persons. 

 
(b) Authority shall retain ownership of all property provided by Authority to Consultant or 

otherwise in the possession of Consultant, including material, supplies, equipment, 
and computer software.  Authority shall have ownership of all documents, reports 
and files, in printed or electronic format created by Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Upon completion or termination of this Agreement, all such property 
shall be provided to Authority by Consultant. 

 
9. Conflict of Interest. 

 
During the term of this Independent Consultant Agreement, Consultant shall not engage in 
any activity or assist any other person to establish or engage in any activity that would, in 
the sole opinion and discretion of Authority, constitute a conflict of interest in carrying out 
Consultant’s activities hereunder. 

 
10. Termination. 

 
(a) Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without cause, and 

with 30 days written notice. 
 

(b) Upon termination of this Agreement, Consultant will be paid for all services 
authorized and performed prior to termination. 

 
11. Indemnification.  
 

Authority will indemnify and hold harmless Consultant, Consultant’s officer, directors and 
employees from and against any and all costs, losses and damages caused solely by the 
negligent acts or omissions of Authority, Authority’s officers, directors, partners, 
employees in the providing of services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall indemnify 
and hold harmless Authority, Authority’s officers, directors and employees from and 
against any and all costs, losses and damages caused solely by the negligent acts or 
omissions of Consultant, Consultant’s officers, directors, partners, employees in the 
providing of services under this Agreement. 

Page 112 of 123



  

 
 

       
12. Assignment. 

 
This Agreement will be deemed to require the performance of services by Consultant.  
Consultant will not assign any right, delegate any duty, subcontract any portion, or 
otherwise transfer any interest hereunder without the prior written consent of Authority. 

 
13. Amendment. 

 
 This Agreement may be amended or revoked at any time by written agreement executed 
by all of the parties to this Agreement.  No change or modification to this Agreement will 
be valid unless in writing and signed by all of the parties to this Agreement. 

 
14. Severability. 

 
If any provision or paragraph of this Agreement shall be prohibited by law or held to be 
invalid, such provision or paragraph shall be separable from this Agreement without 
invalidating the remaining provisions or paragraphs hereof. 

 
15. Notices. 

 
Any notice required under this Agreement shall be in writing, given personally or 
addressed to the appropriate party at its legal address by registered or certified mail.  All 
notices shall be effective upon the date of receipt. 

 
16. Waiver. 
 

Non-enforcement of any provision herein by either party shall not constitute a waiver of 
that provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of 
this Agreement. 

 
17. Governing Law. 

 
This Agreement is governed by and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Michigan. 

 
        18.  Headings. 
  

The headings to the Sections of the Agreement are inserted for convenience only and will 
not be deemed a part of this Agreement for purposes of interpreting or applying the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
        19.  Entire Agreement. 
 

This Agreement represents the entire agreement between Authority and Consultant and 
neither party has relied upon representations not contained in this Agreement.  This 
Agreement supercedes all other prior agreements and policies, either oral or written, 
between Authority and Consultant. 

 
 
 
 

Page 113 of 123



  

 
 

20. Remedies. 
 

The remedies herein provided are not exclusive and the exercise of any such remedy will 
be without prejudice to the exercise of any other right or remedy hereunder or under law. 
 

21. Counterparts. 
 
This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which will be deemed 
an original but all of which will constitute one and the same. 

 
       IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed 
in their respective names as of this day and year first above written. 
 
 
 
Consultant:      Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority: 
 
By:________________________________  By:_____________________________________  
 
Name:  __________________, Consultant  Name:  Harry Lester, Chairman  
    
Date:______________________________  By:_____________________________________
      
       Name:   
        Anthony V. Marrocco, Secretary 
 
       Date:____________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Witnesses:      Witnesses: 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________________ 
 

Page 114 of 123



  

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

STATEMENT OF SERVICES 
 
 
Detailed Job Description/Services to be provided. 
 
 

Page 115 of 123



Page 116 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 5



                                                                                                                                                  
 

RESOLUTION 
 

Pathfinder Sign Replacement Permit 
Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Wayne County, Michigan 
 
 
The Authority is currently in the process of replacing its Metropark “pathfinder” signs 
throughout the system.  These signs typically are placed within county road rights-of-
way in the vicinity of park entrances, and they provide directions to the various park 
locations to visitors. 
 
Because the signs are typically located within county  road rights-of-way, coordination 
with county road agencies is necessary.  In order to permit the placement of pathfinder 
signs by Authority forces within Wayne County road rights-of-way, the Wayne County 
Department of Public Services (WCDPS) requires the Authority to approve a Pathfinder 
Sign Permit Resolution as part of its permitting process.   
 
The Resolution basically requires the Authority to comply with the conditions of the 
permit (to be issued);  to indemnify Wayne County from claims arising out of the 
Authority’s installation and maintenance of the signs;  that the Authority be responsible 
for damage to WCDPS property; and other conditions.  The proposed Resolution is 
attached. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Prepared by Chief Engineer Arens and made by Staff.  That the 
Board of Commissioners approve the attached Resolution.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 117 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 6



HURON-CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY 
PATHFINDER SIGN PERMIT RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, t he H uron-Clinton M etropolitan A uthority ( hereinafter t he " Authority") 
periodically applies to the County of Wayne Department of Public Services, Engineering 
Division P ermit O ffice ( hereinafter t he "County") for permits t o conduct r epairs a nd 
maintenance w ork r elated t o i ts M etropark P athfinder Signs w ithin l ocal a nd C ounty 
road rights-of-way, as nee ded-from ti me to ti me to maintain the r oads i n a c ondition 
reasonably safe and convenient for public travel;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 51 of 1951, being MCL 247.651 et seq, the County permits 
and regulates such activities;  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the County granting such Permit, the Authority 
agrees and resolves that:  

It will fulfill all permit requirements and to the extent permitted by law will save harmless, 
represent and defend the County of Wayne and all of its officers, agents and employees 
from any and all claims and losses occurring or resulting to any and all persons, f irms, 
or c orporations furnishing or  s upplying w ork, s ervices, m aterials, or  s upplies t o t he 
Authority as the result of the Authority's installation, construction, repair or maintenance 
activities which ar e bei ng per formed un der t he t erms o f the P ermit on,  ov er, an d/or 
under the County right-of-way or any local road; and  

1. It w ill f ulfill a ll permit requirements and to the extent permitted by law will save 
harmless, r epresent a nd d efend the C ounty of  Wayne and al l of i ts officers, 
agents and employees from any  and al l c laims o f every k ind f or i njuries t o, or  
death o f, a ny and al l per sons, a nd for l oss of  or dam age t o p roperty, and  
environmental da mage or  deg radation, an d f rom at torney's f ees and r elated 
costs ar ising out  o f, under , or by  r eason o f t he Authority’s installation, 
construction, r epair or  m aintenance ac tivities which are being performed under 
the t erms of t he P ermit o n, ov er, and/or under t he C ounty r ight-of-way or  any  
local r oad, ex cept c laims r esulting f rom the di rect n egligence or  willful a cts o r 
omissions of said County performing permit activities.  

2. Any w ork per formed for t he Authority by a contractor or  s ubcontractor w ill be 
solely as  a c ontractor f or t he Authority and not as  a contractor or  agent o f the 
County. A ny c laims by  any  c ontractor or s ubcontractor w ill be the s ole 
responsibility of the Authority. The County shall not be subject to any obligations 
or liabilities by vendors and contractors of the Authority, or their subcontractors or 
any ot her per son n ot a par ty t o t he P ermit without i ts s pecific pr ior written 
consent and notwithstanding the issuance of the Permit.  

Page 118 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 6-1



3. The Authority shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly 
or i ndirectly out  of  i ts obl igations, r esponsibilities, and d uties un der t he P ermit 
which r esults i n c laims being as serted a gainst or  j udgment being i mposed 
against the County, and all officers, agents and employees thereof pursuant to a 
maintenance c ontract. I n t he event t hat s ame oc curs, for t he pu rposes o f t he 
Permit, it  will be considered a breach of the Permit thereby giving the County a 
right to seek and obtain any necessary relief or remedy, including, but not by way 
of limitation, a judgment for money damages.  

4. With respect to any activities authorized by Permit, when the Authority requires 
insurance o n i ts ow n or i ts c ontractor's be half, i t s hall al so r equire t hat s uch 
policy include as named insured the County of Wayne and al l officers, agents 
and employees thereof.  

5. The incorporation by the County of this resolution as part of a Permit does not 
prevent the County from requiring additional performance security or insurance 
before issuance of a Permit.  

6. The Authority shall, at no expense to Wayne County, provide necessary pol ice 
supervision, es tablish det ours an d pos t al l nec essary s igns and ot her t raffic 
control d evices i n ac cordance w ith t he M ichigan M anual of U niform Traffic 
Control Devices.  

7. The A uthority shall assume full r esponsibility f or t he cost of r epairing dam age 
done to the County road during the period of installation, construction, repair or 
maintenance related to its Metropark Pathfinder Signs.  

This resolution shall continue in force from this date until cancelled by the Authority or 
the County with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party. It will 
not b e c ancelled or o therwise t erminated b y t he Authority with r egard t o a ny P ermit 
which has already been issued or activity which has already been undertaken.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following position(s) are authorized to apply to 
the County of Wayne Department of Public Services Engineering Division Permit Office 
for the necessary permit to work within County road right-of-way or local roads on behalf 
of the Authority:  Jayne S. Miller, Director 

  
I hereby certify that the above is a true and 
correct copy of the original Resolution 
approved by the Board of Commissioners 
of the Huron-Clinton Metropolitan 
Authority on May 13, 2010.  
 
 
 
Gregory J. Almas  
Executive Secretary  
 
 
 
 

Page 119 of 123



HURON-CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY 
INTER-OFFICE COMMUNICATION 

 
 

TO:    Jayne Miller 
 
FROM: Bill Johnstone 
  Greg Almas 
  Dave Moilanen 
  Dave Wahl  
 
DATE:  May 3, 2010 
 
RE:  Retiree Health Care 
  
At our January meeting, the Board approved staff to “explore options that will provide our 
retirees’ quality healthcare at reduced cost,” and provide them with a plan equivalent to our 
current employees.   
 
We have investigated several health plan options and are recommending that we switch to a 
Medicare Advantage plan offered by Blue Cross Blue Shield.  This plan has a $250 deductible 
and requires copayments that are equivalent to our active employees’ plan.   
 
We performed an extensive review of our past collective bargaining agreements with the 
assistance of our legal counsel to ensure that we could make this change.    
 
On May 9, 1985 we modified the language regarding hospitalization for active employees and 
retirees.  Our attorney’s opinion is that anyone retiring after this date is subject to modification of 
their hospitalization coverage. There are 123 post-65 retirees in this category.  The remaining 
16, pre May 9, 1985, would continue in the current traditional plan.   
 
Since the monthly per member cost provides sufficient savings to the Authority, we are not 
recommending that we implement a premium cost share by the retiree at this time.  
 
 2010 Plan Year Quote 
 Current Plan per Member/Month $537.78 
 MA Plan per Member/Month  $272.24   
 Savings per Member/Month  $265.54 
 
The implementation of this change would be July 1, 2010.  Prior to July 1, we will have meetings 
and informational mailings for all of our retirees. 
 
It is recommended by Human Resource Officer William Johnstone and recommended by staff 
that: the Board authorize staff to proceed with implementation of the Medicare Advantage plan 
offered by Blue Cross Blue Shield effective July 1, 2010 for the post May 8, 1985 retirees.  

Page 120 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 7



HURON-CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY 
INTER-OFFICE COMMUNICATION 

 
 

TO:    Jayne Miller  
FROM:  Dave Moilanen 
DATE:  May 13, 2010 
RE:  Donations for May HCMA Board of Commissioners meeting 
  
The following donations were received through April 30 for the May 13, 2010 Board of 
Commissioners meeting: 
 

• A $350 bench donation made by Sabu Anthony for Lake Erie. 
 

• A $475 bench donation made by Kathryn Slattery for use at Hudson Mills. 
 

• A donation of dog and goat agility equipment made by Sharon Grech for use at the 
Wolcot Mill Farm Center 

 
• A $2,590 donation to purchase new skate skis from Team Nordic Ski Racer (15K Frosty 

Race proceeds) for use at Huron Meadows. 
 

•  A $500 donation to purchase new cross-country ski equipment made by the Washtenaw 
Ski Touring Society for use at Huron Meadows. 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Made by Deputy Director Moilanen and recommended by staff: that the Board of 
Commissioners formally accepts the above donations and a letter of appreciation be sent to the 
donors. 
 
 
  

Page 121 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 8



Page 122 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
7D 9



 
HURON-CLINTON METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY 

INTER-OFFICE COMMUNICATION 
 
 
 

TO:    Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Greg Almas, Executive Secretary 
DATE:  May 7, 2010 
RE:  Closed Session information 
 
 
The closed session packet will be distributed at the May 13 Board of Commissioners meeting. 
  

Page 123 of 123

shawn.athayde
Typewritten Text
8


	1 MAY_Agenda
	3_Change to April 8 minutes
	4_2009 Audited Financial Statements
	4-1_Engagement Letter
	4-2_Financial Audit PowerPoint Handout
	Slide Number 1
	Presented by:
	Audit Responsibility
	Guide to Your Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Basic Financial Statements
	Basic Financial Statements
	Slide Number 12
	Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Recommended Fund Equity
	Slide Number 17
	   Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
	   Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
	   Audit Findins
	Slide Number 21
	Questions and Answers…

	4-3_Management Letter Recommendations
	6-1 Loader
	6-2 Litter Vacuum
	6-3 Picnic Shelter Tab
	6-4 Aquatic Chemicals
	6-5 Radio Repeater
	6-6 Paddleboats
	7A 1_Bids-Water System Improvement, Orchard Comfort Station
	7A 2_Braun Construction Dewatering Claim - KMP Martindale
	7A 3_Bids-Admin Office Building Exterior Repairs
	7B 1_DTE SolarCurrents Agreement HrMP Cart Barn
	7C 1_Bids-Activity Center Parking Lot
	7D 1_2010 Insurance Report
	7D 2_2010 Update-Summary of Changes
	7D 3_MSF 60-Day Report_FINAL
	7D 4_Memo - Organizational Structure and Operational Improvements Project
	7D 4-2_HCMA Proposal Reorg 04_09_10
	7D 4-3_Consultant Agreement
	STATEMENT OF SERVICES

	7D 5_Auditor Appointment
	7D 6_Resolution - Sign Replacement Permit, Wayne County DPS
	7D 6-1_Attachment to Resolution - Sign Replacement Permit - Clean Copy
	7D 7_Retiree Health Care
	7D 8_5-13-2010_Items for Donation Letter
	7D 9_Legislative Report_5-13-2010
	8_Closed Session



